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OUR BUSINESS

We are one of the world’s largest private owners of
timberiands. We own or control nearly 7 million acres of
timberlands, primarily in the U.S., and manage another

14 million acres under long-term licenses in Canada. We
manage these timberlands on a sustainable basis in
compliance with internationally recognized forestry standards.
We are also one of the largest manufacturers of wood and
specialty cellulose fibers products, and we develop real estate,
primarily as a builder of single-family homes. Our company is a
real estate investment trust (REIT).

We are committed to operate as a sustainable company and
are listed on the Dow Jones World Sustainability Index. We
focus on increasing energy and resource efficiency. reducing
greenhouse gas emissions, reducing water consumption,
conserving natural resources, and offering products that meet
human needs with superior sustainability attributes. We
operate with world class safety results, understand and
address the needs of the communities in which we operate,
and present ourselves transparently.

In 2013, we generated $8.5 billion in net sales and employed
approximately 13,700 people who serve customers worldwide.

This portion of our Annual Report and Form 10-K provides
detailed information about who we are, what we do and where
we are headed. Unless otherwise specified, current information
reported in this Form 10-K is as of the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2013.

We break out financial information such as revenues, earnings
and assets by the business segments that form our company.
We also discuss the development of our company and the
geographic areas where we do business.

Throughout this Form 10-K, uniess specified otherwise,
references to “we,” “our,” “us” and “the company” refer to the
consolidated company.

WE CAN TELL YOU MORE

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We meet the information-reporting requirements of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by filing periodic reports, proxy
statements and other information with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC). These reports and statements —
information about our company’s business, financial results
and other matters — are available at:

» the SEC Internet site — www.sec.gov;

+ the SEC's Public Conference Room, 100 F St. N.E.,
Washington, D.C., 20549, (800) SEC-0330; and

« our Internet site — www.weyerhaeuser.com.

When we file the information electronically with the SEC, it also
is added to our Internet site.

WHO WE ARE
We started out as Weyerhaeuser Timber Company, incorporated
in the state of Washington in January 1900, when Frederick
Weyerhaeuser and 15 partners bought 900,000 acres of
timberland. Today, we are working to grow a truly great
company for our shareholders, customers and employees by
striving to deliver quality products that our customers want and
will pay for, at the lowest possible cost.

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST (REIT) ELECTION

Starting with our 2010 fiscal year, we elected to be taxed as a
REIT. We expect to derive most of our REIT income from
investments in timberlands, including the sale of standing
timber through pay-as-cut sales contracts. REIT income can be
distributed to shareholders without first paying corporate level
tax, substantially eliminating the double taxation on income. A
significant portion of our timberland segment earnings receives
this favorable tax treatment. We are, however, subject to
corporate taxes on built-in-gains (the excess of fair market
value over tax basis at January 1, 2010) on sales of real
property (other than standing timber) held by the REIT during
the first 10 years following the REIT conversion. We continue to
be required to pay federal corporate income taxes on earnings
of our Taxable REIT Subsidiary (TRS), which principally includes
our manufacturing businesses, our real estate development
and single-family home building operations and the portion of
our Timberlands segment income included in the TRS.

OUR BUSINESS SEGMENTS

In the Consolidated Results section of Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations, you will find our overall performance results for our
business segments:

« Timberlands,

« Wood Products,

» Cellulose Fibers and
- Real Estate.

Detaiied financial information about our business segments
and our geographic locations is in Note 2: Business Segments
and Note 23: Geographic Areas in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, as well as in this section and in the
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.

EFFECT OF MARKET CONDITIONS

The health of the U.S. housing market strongly affects our Real
Estate, Wood Products and Timberlands segments. Real Estate

WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY > 2013 ANNUAL REPORT AND FORM 10K 1



focuses on building single family homes. Wood Products primarily
sells into the new residential building and repair and remodel
markets. Demand for logs from our Timberiands segment is
affected by the production of wood-based building products as
well as export demand. Cellulose Fibers is primarily affected by
global demand and the relative strength of the U.S. dollar.

COMPETITION IN OUR MARKETS

We operate in highly competitive domestic and foreign markets,
with numerous companies selling similar products. Many of our
products also face competition from substitutes for wood and
wood-fiber products. In real estate development, our conrpetitors
include numerous regional and national firms. We compete in
our markets primarily through price, product quality and service
levels. We are relentlessly focused on improving operational
excellence 1o ensure a competitive cost structure and producing
quality products customers want and are wiling to pay for.

Our business segments’ competitive strategies are as follows:

« Timberiands — Extract maximum value from each acre we
own or manage.

- Wood Products — Deliver high-quality lumber, structural
panels, engineered wood products and complementary
products for residential applications.

. Cellulose Fibers — Concentrate on value-added pulp
products.

. Real Estate — Deliver unique value propositions in target
markets.

SALES OUTSIDE THE U.S.

In 2013, $2.5 billion — 29 percent —- of our total consolidated
sales from continuing operations were to customers outside
the U.S. Exports from the U.S. increased $209 million, or 12
percent, primarily due to higher log export prices and volumes
in our Timberlands segment and higher puip sales volumes in
our Cellulose Fibers segment. The table below shows sales
outside the U.S. for the last three years.

SALES OUTSIDE THE U.S. IN MILLIONS OF DOLLARS

Exports from the U.S.

Caradian export and domestic sales 488 K 348 363 1

} Other foreign sales "114 92 70 ;
Total ; $2,493 $2,122 ; $2,208 ‘
Percent of total sales 29% 30%3 36%,

OUR EMPLOYEES

We have approximately 13,700 employees. This number
includes:

+ 12,850 employed in North America and
« 850 employed by our operations outside of North America.

2

Of these employees, approximately 3,560 are members of
unions covered by multi-year collective-bargaining agreements.
More information about these agreements is in Note 10:
Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

WHAT WE DO S

This section provides information about how we:

» grow and harvest trees,

« manufacture and sell products made from them,
- build and sell homes and

- develop land.

For each of our business segments, we provide details about
what we do, where we do it, how much we sell and where we
are headed.

TIMBERLANDS

Our Timberlands business segment manages 6.9 million acres
of private commercial forestland woridwide. We own 6.2 million
of those acres and have long-term leases on the other

0.7 million acres. In addition, we have renewable, longterm
licenses on 13.9 million acres of forestland located in four
Canadian provinces. The tables presented in this section
include data from this segment’s business units as of the end
of 2013.

WHAT WE DO

Forestry Management

Our Timberlands business segment:

- grows and harvests trees for use as lumber, other wood and
building products and pulp and paper,

« exports logs to other countries where they are made into
products;

- plants seedlings to reforest harvested areas using the most
effective regeneration method for the site and species (in
parts of Canada natural regeneration is employed);

- monitors and cares for the new trees as they grow to
maturity; and

. seeks to sustain and maximize the timber supply from our
forestlands while keeping the health of our environment a key
priority.

Our goal is to maximize returns by selling logs and stumpage to
internal and external customers. We focus on solid wood and
use intensive silviculture to improve forest productivity and
returns while managing our forests on a sustainable basis to
meet customer and public expectations.



Sustainable Forestry Practices
We are committed 1o responsible environmental stewardship
wherever we operate, managing forests to produce financially
mature timber while protecting the ecosystem sewvices they
provide, Our working forests include places with unigue
environmental, cultural, historical or recreational value, To
protect thelr unigue qualities, we follow regulatory
requirements, voluntary :,tandards and implement the
Sustainable mresm Initiative” {SF)) standard. Independent
auditing of all of the forests we own or manage ir
States and Canada certifies that we meet the SFi s
forestiands in Uruguay are Forest Stewardship Coun
certified or managed to the Uruguayan national for f»s;azy
management standard designed to meet the Program for the
Endorsement of Forest Certification (PEFC)

1 the United

Canadian Forestry Operations

in Canada, we have licenses to operate forestlands that provide
raw material for our manufacturing units in various provinces.
When we harvest trees, we pay the provinces at stumpage
s sel by the governmeant, which generally are based on
ailing market prices. We transfer logs to ourr ;amzfac%i‘ur’mgf
nits at cost, which means that we do not generate any profit in
he Timberlands segment from the harvest of timber from the
icensed acres in Canada.

i

Other Values From Our Timberiands

In the United States, we actively manage mineral, oll and gas
leases on our land and use geologic databases 1o identify and
market opportunities for commercial mineral and geothermal

development. We recognize leasing revenue over the terms of
agreements with customers, Revenue primarily comes from:

=

royalty payments on oil and gas production,
upfront bonus payments from oil and gas leas
exploration activity;

royalty payments on hard minerals {rock, sand and gravel);
geothermal lease and optlion revenues; and

the sale of mineral assets.

=

sing and

s

o

In managing mineral resources, we generate revenue related to
OUr OWnNer f«h §3 of the minerals and, sepamzﬁly related to our
: of the surface. The ownership of mineral rights and
ce acres may be held by two separate parties. Materials
that can be mined from the surface, and whose value comes
’mm factors other than thelr chemical composition, typically
ng to the surface owner. Examples of surface materials
include rock, sand, gravel, dirt and topsoil. The mineral owner
holds the title to commodities that derive value from thelr
unique chemical composition. Examples of mineral rights
include oll, gas, coal (even if mined at the surface} and
precious metals, If the two types of rights conflict, then r

vneral

rights. A third type of
10 either the surface
geotharmal

rights generally are superior to surface
land right is geothermal, which can belong
or mineral owner. We routinely reserve mineral and
rights when selling surface timberlands acreage.

cisafe exﬂ?aﬂgw 1
‘mberiand ;aaﬁfoixe or afe J}‘d o

and gas

Other products

HOW WE MEASURE OUR PRODUCT
We report Timberands data in cubic meters. Cubic meters

megasure the total volume of wood fiber in a tree or log that we
can sell. Cubic meter volume is determined from the
small-end diameters and length and provides a more cor
and comparative measure of timber and log volume amo

aperating regions, spec size and seasons of the y
other units of measure

We also use two other units of measure when transacting
business including

« thousand board feetl (MBF) — used in the West 1o measure
the expected lumber recovery from a tree or log, but this
measure does not include taper or recovery of non-dumber
residual products; and

» green tons — used in the South to measure weight, but
factors used for conversion to product volume can vary by
apecies, size, focation and season.

Both measures are accurate in the regions where they are
used, but they do not provide a meaningful b
comparisons between the regions.,

gis for

The conversion rate for MBF to cubic maters varies based on
several factors including diameter, length and taper of the
timber. The average conversion rate for MBF to cuble meters is
approximately 6.7 cubic meters per MBF.

ke

on rate from green tons 1o cubic meters also vari

The conversi

based on the season harvested and the specific gravity of the
wood for the region where the timber is grown. An average
conversion rate for green tons to cubic meters is approximately
0.825 cubic meters per green ton.
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Customers

Sales for Timberlands Percentage of 2003 Sales to Una

Five-Year Summary of Ne

AND GAS

ATIONS™

Log Sales Volumes

19 22 o5 Tl 4 %x‘sge,'*“ sold to unaffillated customers in 2013 increased
2.1 million cubic meters — 17 percent — from 2012,
Minerals. oi e 31 53 50 62 » Sales volumes in the West increased 1.8 million cubic
and gas S I meters — 31 percent — primarily due to strong export and

106 86 51} il . r e [,
90{ 106 5 oo A domestic demand and the purchase of Longview Timber, Qur
stern sales to unaffiliated customers generally are higher

4B 17 1w a8 rade logs sold into the export market and domestic-grade
R348 1,077 1,044 a474 714 s sold to West Coast sawmills.

to unaffiliated customers in the South increasead
and cubic melers — G percent — primarily due to
narvest levels and increased sales of logs to third

increased

518 447 parties. Our southern sales volumes to unaffiliated
281 236 customers generally are lowergrade fiber logs sold to pulp or
a0 683 containerboard mills. We use most of our high-grade logs in
our own converting facilities.
: « Sales volumes from Canada decreased 20 thousand cubic
82442 | $1,760 | 91,690 ] $1.477 51,251 meters - 4 percent — in 2043, This decrease in volume 10

er use timbertand and some norvstrategc unaffiliated customers primarily was due to increased internal
d fumber harvested or produced by our mill demand,

S Sales volumes from our international operations increased
14 thousand cubic meters - 4 percent — in 2013, This
increase in volume was mainly due to increased domestic
dernand in Uruguay.

ducts include logs, ¢
internationatl operation

2

Fhve-Yeoar as in Thuberiands

We sell three grades of logs — domestic grade, domestic fiver
arnd export. Fadtors that may affect jog sales in each of the
s include:

« domestic grade log sales — lumber usage, primarily for
housing starts and repair ¢ nfj remodel activity, the r ;
our own mills and the availability of logs from both ou

3@?% ﬂd our own timberiands;

s — demand for chips by pulp and

o

it Sales jestorm Logs | Other Products containerboard mills; and
expm’t fog sales the level of housing starts in Japan and
construction in China,

Zivd

®

PORT AND FORM 10K | 7
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Flve-Year Summary of Export Log Prices
Oy e G B

s by ihe sales and
business unils.

Sumimary of Log Sales Vol
for Timbadands

12,347

10,938

i by the supply of and dey
ogs and are influenced by the same factors
. Export log prices are particularly aff
arket.

n the West incr

o

313 log realizations in the South

Minerals and Energy Products

5

Mineral revenue increased slightly in 2 from increases in
royatty revenue resulting from improv ..s‘n(»éﬁ‘i:ss in natural gas
prices, construction aggregates, and industrial minera

WHERE WE'RE HEADED

stegies include:

=

rough operational exce
as otie of the largest, lowe

imber;

- ;rvez%tmg in technol c>g§,\ é
improve yields and timber quality
hsrvezx‘m&, g our r‘r'xiz‘x@r‘zzxi owne

« Captur value of the Longview Tirr

¢ acguisition:

B
R




« continuously reviewing our portfolio of land holdings to create  Principal Manufacturing Locations
the greatest value for the company; and Locations of our principal manufacturing facilities as of
« positioning ourselves to take advantage of new market December 34, 2043, by major product group weréa:
opportunities that may be created by energy and climate
nge legislation and regulation.

s Structuratl lumber

chia Ted
wkansas, Loulsiana, Missis

WOOD PRODUCTS

We are a large manufacturer and distr
narily in North America and Asia.

itor of wood products

it

pri Louisiana, Oregon and West V

~ British Columbia and Ontario

WHAT WE DO

Our wood

segment:

of high-guality softwood lumber, eng
umber, structural panels and other specialty products to the
rses;ml«;;mtxm, multi-family and light commercial markets; - 1.8,
sells our products and services primarily through our own
sales organizations and distribution facilities as well as
building materials that we purchase from other
manutacturers,;
artain products into the repair and remode! market
throug ;”2 the W{}Gd presen xﬂff and home-improvemant
warehouse chaﬂmeés; and
i softwood lumber, oriented strand board (OSE) ngineered Hoists ~ lneal fest
i bullding materials 1o Asiz

=

Softwood plywood

Arkansas and Louisiana

%

Suvunary of 20003 Wood Produe

tion — cubic

%

sent annual production
volume under normal ope onditions and producing a
normal product mix for each individual facility. Production
capacities do not include any capacity for facilities that were
sold or permanently closed as of the end of 2013

Produ epre

()urmp 2013, we decided to permanently close our Colbert,
engineered lumber facility and reopen in 2014 our
een, Alabama engineéred lumber facility. Both facilities

> previously ind

Iditionally, our hardwoods operations were sold in 2041 and
WHERE WE DO 1T sxcluded from our Wood Product’s resuits hsﬂew More
’ ) ) information zbm t ale 15 included in Note 5: Di

=

We operate manufacturing facilities in the United States » Operations in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
> distribute through a combination of ‘W{wg:\}'zgm\,ss;@s'
locations. Information about th 5

actual production of our z'ﬂzzam,sf;ﬁ;s*“

is included below.
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Products

Wood Products Volume

QEFEd B0
me of structural lumber, {358 and engineered lumber sold

el

"

in ’j’(;m ncreased from 204
targeted capital Improvements am.i new pf‘oﬁuci: (ﬁzt‘faerimgs«x

HOW MUGH WE SELL

Revenues of our Wood Pro
(Watels] 3m«“§u<t ieal ,,,37 d{
it

¢ Wood Prodects

Five-Year Summanry of Sales Vol

ait cormne from sales 1o
itiars, hullders and
y $4.0

2012,

Wooi Products Prices

| Softwond o 115 | aa TR Prices for commodity wood pm fucts — Structural luraber, 058
| plywood | - and Plywood ~ increased in 2013
Ottver products 1687 142 1RE 130§

produced in general, the following factors influence prices for wood products:

Demand for wood products used in residential ¢
ion and the repair and
rices. Residential construction is influenced
population growth and other
el of employme
ar income, availabii
d the supply and pricing of exis
rzf";sasr and remodel activity is af
e of existing housing inventory and ac
neing and other credit.
ipply of commaodity building products such
as structural tumber, DSB and plywood affects prices. A
nymber of £ n ir‘}fium’;&:(y supply, including changes in
production capacity and utilization rates, weather, raw
material supply and availability of transportation

availabiiity ¢

10




The North American housing market continued to show CELLULOSE FIBERS

sustained improvement in 2013, This improvement led to Our cellulose fibers segment is one of the world's largest

increased demand and resulted in improved pricing for producers of absorbent fuff pulp used in products such as

commodity wood products in 2013. The following graphs reflect  gianers. We also manufacture liquid packaging board and other
product price trends for the past five years pulp ;}?mmiw We have a B0 percent interest in North Pacific

Yoar Swnmary of Published Lumber Pel oration (NORPAC) — a joint venture with Nippon

hat produces newsprint and high-brightne

WHAT WE DO

Our celiviose fibars 5

« provides cellulose fibers for absorbent products in markets
around the world;

» works closely with our customers to develop unigue or
specialized applications;

= manufactures liquid packaging board used primarily for the
production of containers for liquid products; and

«is largely energy self sufficient, with 83 percent of its energy

derived from black lquor produced at the mills and biome

Pulp
@ "!iﬁ"! ;auif

W W(“‘ Irm puip

WHERE WE DO T

Our ¢ uzrw, fibers {pulp) products are distributed through a
glob s sales network, and our Hquid packaging products
arg sold directly to carton and food product packaging
converters in mn i Am@.r ica-and Asia. Locations of our principa
manufacturing facilities by major product group are?

. l\OP H O &TPAL

(s

SULRCE: RANT

WHERE WE'RE HEADED « Pulp Manufacturis

Our competitive strategies jnclude: - US, — “9‘5} g fa {2), Mississippl and North Carolina
Canada -~ Albarta

« reduce controlfable manufacturing costs through operational « Pulp Converting

excellence;
intain a value-a

aed St P - N »
dded product mix; ~ Poland (began converting in first quarter 2013)

« leverage our brand and reputation as the preferred provider « Liquid packaging board
of quality building products; and - LS, Washington
¢ pursue disciplined, profitable sales growth including
increasing in geographies outside of Notth America.

S
bt

WD FORM 10K
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SBumrmary of 2003 C

% Uapasitios

Fibers

1.

282

HOW MUCH WE SELL

sy Tor direct use. Our ne
arable to $1.9 billion in 24

$2,068 |

4,541

Fulp Volumes

Qur volumes ¢

Hulose Tiber gfocs‘wfﬁ \
tons in ( 13 and 1.8 million tons in 201

. «i j‘u.,,n\“

Factors that affect sales volum
include:

fibar products

« growth of the world gre
and for abs

domestic product and
e products and ¢

L by fiwm :
v‘is‘scoa‘m and fluff realizations ab a result of market supply
prc;-\,zamr than demand. NBSK is considered mw,mm kK

softwood pulp price and generally the starting pol




WHERE WE'RE HEADED

Our competitive strategies include:

s cost-competitiveness through operational
Hance;
» focusing capital investiments on prod \, cost

reduction and green energy opportuni ;
» driving growth of higher margin products
ing new products that expand and improve the range
plications for cellulose fibers
iner Oa%ﬂg, sales of specialty chemical cellulose pulp
C global customers.

iness segment includes our wholly-owned
sidiary Wﬁym%.h 2user Real Estate Company (WRECO) and

bﬂ idiaries.

WHAT WE DO

eal Estate segment focuses on:

- constic
plannad communii
: propefty

- Washington

as a result of
for developmant will

agreement with Tri Pointe Homes, Inc.,
mmmg em om dc*tmmmm that our
differ f

d in cur Real Estate
Hocated tems. The fair vaim-: of {h(;f PIODPE
imarily based on an independent appraisal t
nined using both other observable inputs
to other nsactions and significant unobsg
inputs (Level as the timing and amounts ©
flows relate jevelopment of the property

amounts of OHiTY acreage sales, access to be
ty and discount rates applicable to the future

(Level &

ma rke? ir
1 such
o the
roces

€
.g*
i

2
the pre

h flows.

WHERE WE DO T

OQur operations are concentrated in metropolitan areas in
Arizona, California, Maryland, Nevada, . Virginia and
Washington,

Controlled

d Virginia

Total controlied jots

On June 18, 2043, we announced that our Board of Directors

authorized the exploration of strategic alternatives with respect
1o Weyerhaeuser Real Estate Company (WRECO), our
homebuilding and real estate development business. The Board
indicated that it intended to consider & broad range of

but not limited tinuing
ger, sale or spin-off of the bus
bher 4, 2043, we ar‘mourcaﬂ ‘{': e |

to, cor

tion and ultimately become a wholly owned

y of TRI Pointe. More information on this transaction

can be found in Note 4: Real Estate Divestiture in the No
Consolidated Financial Statements and on our Curren

on Form 8K filed with the Securities and Exch

on November 4, 2013,

2013 we recorded a $356 million non-

y & large n

During fourth quarter
cash impairment ¢t master-planned
community located north of 5, Nevada (the "Coyote
Springs Property”), which is excluded from the transaction

rge re

[E

Qur lots are controlled through both ownership and the use of
options and are invarious stages of development. Of the total
lots we have under control, approximately 17 percent of them
are intended for sale to otherbuilders.

HOW MUCH WE SELL
We are one of the top 20 homebuliding companies in the

United States as

ured by annual single-family home

ed to $1.3 billion in 2013, up 1
in 2012. Revenues frf:am e
; $349 mition, or 40 percent, as a
of a 27 percent increase in home closings. Revenues
land and lot sales decreased $141 million.
the sale of a 3,200-acr er p!sﬁxrwsﬁ d community in
Houston, Texas and 1 ho 84 !o of commercial acreage and multi-
family lots in southern California.

12 included
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€

e

The following factors af
busingss segmant:

“ 'if'i'“ee market prices of the hon
ot and geographi

les var

?"f;fe ! §(‘}§f~!§ fg:
» markets where we build vary ©
homes that range I price poin
wwstomers’ needs, from firstd
ased on ge Ngfa;";hy
price point
33‘?63{} hemss

» From time to time, we
income producing propert

Yeour Sununary of Net Sales

ity housing

omponent of our activiti

ar 1o year and ma

lel var

nues in our Real Estate

jes ba

skl

5903 | 5904

§1,125

sles In Real Estate

Momes ¢

sold but

15

BRA6H

Sainoon

@2 /o;
4

%

WHERE WE'RE HEADED

Our competitive strategies include:




EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Patricia M. Bedient, 80, has been
executive vice president and chief
financial officer since 2007.
senjor vice president, 3
Strategic Planning, from February 2006 to
2007. She sarved
Strategic Planning,
company, to 2008, Prior to jcms
r with Arthur Andersen LLP {
Accountant) from 1987 to 2002 and served a
partner for the Seattle office and as the partner in

firm’s forest products practice from 19899 to 2002,
the Board of Directors for Alaska Air Group and also
a Board member of Oregon State University and Qvertake

Hospital Madical Center. She is & CPA and member of the
American Institute of CPAs

i G
She we

as vice pres
3

from 2003, when she
ng the company,

joined the she

was

She is on

sSernves us

een senior
ust 21,

Adrian M. Blocker, 57, has 1f
vice president, Lum i
2013, He joined W
2013 as vice pr
that role, he served as CEO of ¢
Products Council and L;waaérmaa:a
Throughout his career |
s leadership positions at Wes!

and Champion Internation
fiber procurement, consumea
Tning, business development and me

r. Prior to

he Wood

neld numerot

mational

senior vice president, Cf’?iuiu%i
since 3_.{.90{1 He was vice president,
Manu mvtuxamg,, Cellulose Fibers, from

2005 to 2006; vice president and mill

at the Kamloops, British
from 2003

cellulose fiber mill
and vice president and mill n
see, paper mill from 2002 to 2003
ser m "tmz with the compan
Inc., where he &

wisition of
v & number of

charge of the

}smm Hooper, 59, has been senior vice
president, Human Resources, since July
2008, He was vice president, Human
Resources Operations, from 2008 to
2008; Human Ressm’c&s director from

2003 to 2008; and strategic projects
onsultant from 2001, when he joined the
03. P jor 1o joining the company, he wa
management consullant specializing in leadership

i an resowrces strategy and change

5 to 2001, From 1979 to 1986,

on Corp. and Tekironix,

he held

. Rhonda Hunter, 51, has been senior vice
president Timberlands, since January 1,
2014, Prior to her current position, she
was vice president, Southern Timberlands,
from 2010 to 2014, She held a number of
leadership positions in the Southern
Timberlands organization with experi
in inventory and planning, regional timberlands mar
fwork systems,

environmental and finance,
verhaeuser in 1987 as an accountant.

and land acquisition,

Sandy D, MoDade, 62, has b
vice president and general counsel
ptember 2006. He was senior vice
fent, industrial Wood Products
onal, from 2005 1o 20086;

|
| :
| since

00 to 2003;
2000, He joined Weyerhaeuser in 1*3530 ami worked as a
corporate and transat 2000.

jon lawyer until

Peter M. Orser, 57, has been president,
Weyerhaeuser Real Estate Company, a
Subsédiae’y of the company, since
., 2010, Prior to be :
Weyfr waeuser Real Estate
Company, Mr. Orser was Q;“@“‘f &
Quadrant Corporation, a subs
to 2010. He was executive vice
rom 2004 to 2003; resider
adrant Corporation, from 1956 to 2
unity Development, from 1992 10 1
rship positions with Quadrant ©
:d the

of the

20
orporation, fr

o
-]
jow
ey
oo
s

sy
-
.

fssd

orporation

company, to 1992,
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Dovie R, Simons, 50, was elected

d chief execitive officer

3 Hé served 85
2, was

Cathering L Slater,
vice president, Oriented

Hastribution,
was vice pre

; ident, Orien
arid an sxec
f’e::%%va }umz iif}'i

N
S}

g

AN R

rand Board,

ngineered Lumb@r Prodicts and
ce Al gisssi

24, 2043

e Strand b{‘sd

(OSB) from 2@11 o g{}l;;% Prior to that
role, she held a number of other
in '*‘“@ {}"“ty}af‘;/ s Wood Produ

ser TﬁiﬁChﬂQ%OgieSt Be’fere i

she held nu

npany 50
dands, 0SB

has ex
COMmpeE
COIDOTE
plarming.

ng forest products
, with strong skills in - held several le
ation, and strategic

P

Fibers busmess aﬁtzuﬁmg feal
ntworth, Ga., Sljt{) mil

fmrm joining Wey@m euser in ﬁi«;w

ership roles at Procter and Gamble.

, has been senior

rel

she



NATURAL RESOURCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL
MATTERS

) T
ons in the

voluntary

We are subject to a multitude of laws and reg
tions of our businesses. We also
timbenands to assure that

’if > 8

we sustain thelr

ation of our
neluding the grotec’tésn of wilc

values | P water quality.

, tan

REGULATIONS AFFECTING FORESTRY PHACTICES

in the United States, regulations established by feder
and local governments or agencies to protect water guali w and
is could affect future harvests and forest >
practices on some of our timberlands. Forest p*acii( e lawq an
regulations that affect present or future harvest and forest
management activities in certain states include:

i, state

wells

s on the size of clearcuts

wirements that some i‘smaﬁ-r be left
water guality and fish and wildlife | g
regu (x[iﬁ"“i regarding construction and mainten

« limits
. red

unharvested to protect

f fore

ange (

S m{,;_s\,siréng reforestation following timber harvest, and

= various refated permit programs.

in which we own timberlands has de

1t practices to reduce the effects mf .‘org ;
on water quality and aquatic habitats. Additiona
5] sulations may be adopted by various st
governments to achieve water-quatity
federal Clean Water Act, protect fish and wildlife t
achieve other public policy objectiv

i

i local

3 i3

standards undet

wabitats, or

In Canada, our forest operations are carried out on public
forestlands under forest licenses with the provinces, Al forest
operations are subject to:

es and environmental regulations,
« license requirements established by contract bet
he relevant province designed to!
protect environmental vatues, arsd

> pther stewardship values.

« forest practi and

20410, 21 member companies of the Fore
iation of Canada (FPAC), includir
ser’s Canadian subsidiary, announc :é;\d the
an Boreal Forest Agreement (CBFA) with nine
ironmental organizations. The CBFA applies to approx
72 mitlion hectares of public forests licensed to FPAC
and, when fully implemented, is expected to lead 1o the
conservation of significant areas of Canada’s boreal forest and
protection of boreal species at risk, in particular woodland
caribou. CBFA signatories continue to work on management

~(.

a Canadia

o

ok the participation of
cing the goals of the
sported on

plans with provincial governm e\nu
aboriginal and local communities in advan
CBFA. Progress under the CBFA is
by an inde nt auditor.

ENDANGERED SPECIES PROTECTIONS
a number of fist
as near or within our fz;mi‘wr%a»
2ried or fﬁﬂdaﬂg#féﬁ uﬁder the

h and witdlife spe

m:?é Emw and steelhead *‘mm in i‘f“w P

i sturgeon species, and
gopher tortoise, g,s;;;)hﬁzr frog
n buryving beetle in the South or South

&

&

the f*‘@d-mﬁmmadz}d \wc')cigx:scken

and Americs

Aclctit aorm! pacies or popumm NS ,xcx> bv 'mmj as threat mcsd

or psﬁ‘s:mw mm&{fc 5 ‘3}; f"»a ‘!
i 31y g

at” for ES
¢ %L,:av.s;\ resuited m settlements ur
sns will be implemented over time. 8
fect some management activities and
timber harvests can result from:

.ch fs!

Restrictions on

state re

guirements 1o protect habitat for
and endangered spacies,

2 gpecies and their habitat, and
uits under the ESA.

Such actions could incre ) s costs and affect
timber supply and prices in g;g 2, we do not believe
that these measures have had, and we do not believe that in
2014 they will have, a significant effect on our harvesting
operations, We antici that likely future actio
oportionally affect Weyerhasuser as cor
competitors,

s will not

ared with

ations of ULS.

in Canada:

cTive

et

s gt Risk Act (SARA) requires pro
ntified as being at risk and for

ounced a series of weste
ther landscape information,
a:? hab ﬁ(at and

2rh S

E

V’kh

@
4
P
o
=
.
o
=
@
m
>
<
a
3
3
@
b
=
~
fB
&
o
&
@
o]
o
s
=

stre t@py f‘m the recovery of ‘ihc‘a boreal
popuiauon of wood amd caribou under the SARA, The next
step in boreal caribou recovery is the development of range
plans and action plans by the provinces and territories
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Canada, aboriginal communities » sometimes made it more difficuit for us to raspond o rapid
5 i markets, extreme weather or other unexpected
circumstances, and

tially encouraged further reductions in the use of, or
5 for, lumber, orient

e

working with Environe
ang stakeholders.

tior and protect
on of range plans an
in additional restrictior
st management pra
s&ts for operators of fore

fieve ‘m(at thase »E‘:?aéxaf

pe di &,g :r*(nmmm aﬁegieé by thes& orograms as
i owners of comparable timberands. We
will not significantly d

?

oportionaly

srupt our

FOREST CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

ica under the 5t nable Forestn
ication standard designed o

programs with voluntary

in public resources

is an independent standard, overseen by 4

Initiative (5F
supplement governime
landowner initiative
and values

; nondaw rights of

aburiginal peoples of Cana Mum of British Columbia (B.C.) is
not covered by treaties, and as a result the claims of E
g relating to forest resource
ny abotiginal groups are
g w%?;:fx ‘me governments of B.C. ar

orotect certa

onsisting of:

lon organizations,

11 rasolution 3“‘3 ms hrought by abc

rictions on the sate or harvest of timber,
in operating costs, and

£ Y i
o Ul oLy

il prices in Canada.
st Steward

s will not have a significa

We b !
v or production of forest products in

our total hary 't
2014, cmrmup h they may have such an effect in the future. In
2008, FPAC, of which we are a:member, signed a Memorandur

of Understanding with the Assembly of t Nations, under
which the parties agree to work together to strengthen

Canada’s sector through economic-development

initiatives and busi j ents, strong environimen
stewardship and the creation of skilldevelopment opportunities

1 to aboriginal youth.

to further those

. products to require
procucts cer g tern. Certain features of
the k“f«»(‘ ste impo : »m al m erat mg’ costs on

‘ssz%;;‘fzeaj forasts, we could

s for operations and be

CONTROL REGULATIONS

are subject to various laws

WHAT THESE REGULATIONS AND CERTIFICATION
PROGRAVS MEANTO US

imber and logs from our ‘ )
fhese laws and regulations, as well as market demands,

impose controls with regard to;

eriands,
» comtributed to iner in the prices paid for wood products
and wood chips during of high demand, « gir, water and Jand,

« gotitd and hazardous waste management,




« disposal and remediation, and
« the chemical content of some of our

products.

usually

sulations
s well as additional operating

Compliance with these laws, re
involves capital expenditures as
costs. We cannot easily guantify the future amounts of capital
expenditures we
fations and demands or the effecis o
n some instances compliance standards
itive. In

I component

our operaling costs

have not

becaus
developed or have ol become fir

L or de

HBErn
addition, it is difficult to isolate the environmer

of most manufacturing capital projects.
! 4|

Our capital projects typically are designed to:

« enhance f’{{é’(}'
« extend the life of a facility,

« inerease oza,oamty.

« increase efficiency,

s change raw material requirements,
s inerease the economic value of ass
« comply with regulatory standards.

s or products, and

We had no material capital expenditures rele
environmental compliance in 2013. B
tanding of current regulatory re

2ments ir

and 4, we expect approximately $10 million o e
expenditures reiating primarily to environmental compliance in
14.

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEANUP
the environmental investigation
es. Of these 8

We are involved in
tion of numerous si

rer

« we may have the sole obligation to remediate,

» we may share that oiv,hg,.emon with one or more parties,

« several parties may have joint and several obligations to
remediate, ot

have been named as a poter

for sites designated as U.S. Super

« We may

pect to these various
The amount of lia

bility with res
nt to substantial.

Qur e

ity and nature of mate
¢ viability of ¢

e, and
he other responsible

s the gquantity, toxe

« the number and economic

;()x:f’x‘rﬁwiy $8 mitlion in 2014 on ¢

fHiation of these sites.

it is our policy to accrue for environmentalremediation costs

when we:
« detarmine it is probable that such an obligation exists, and
« can reasonably estimate the amount of the obligation,

might have to make to wmmy with these laws,

We currently believe it is reasonably possible that owr costs to
remediate all the identified sites may exceed our current

of $30 million. The excess amounts required may
ficant or could range, in the aggregate, up to $101

million over several years. This estimate of the upper end of the
reasonably possible additional costs s my
satim Jf&’b we cur Fbﬁt} are ysi ngt

range of

ain than the

FAIR EMISSIONS IN THE U.S.

nmentatl Protection l‘\gffr‘""—cy (EPA) hac

‘or air emissions from

« pulp and paper manufacturing facilities,
« wood products facilities and
« industrial boilers.

The cover:

regutations

"’xa;amﬁc;w air

r poll

I 20 flk 1 and 2013,
industrial boilers and pr

A [ssued new MACT standards for
ocess heaters and in 2012 comple
al risk review for the MACT standards
nd bleaching operations at pulp and
ing facilities. As a réesult of these re
%’A we expect we might spend as much
the next several vears to comply

tions by the %ﬁ
$25 milfion to $45 million over

with the MACT standards.
The EPA must still promulgate:

aia

seed

« technology and residual risk re ds for additional
operations at pulp and paper manufacturing facilities and

« supplemental MACT standards for plywood, lumber and
composite wood products

facilities.

We cannot currently g
In the future to comply with new fagsiag ns being deve
the EPA because final rules have not been promu

£

in 2007, the U.S. Supreme Court ruled that greenhouse g
tHutants that can be subject to regulation under the Clear

Air Act. As a result, the EPA

2 DO

in 2009 for reporting ¢
wpplicable to our manufacturing

o promulgs

ted regulations

sions that

_—
operations;

« issued a final rule in 2010 that applies to our manufacturing
operations on & project-by-project basis that would fimit the
growth in greenhouse gas emissions from new projects
meeating certain emission thresholds; and
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o in 207 fforts to further develop independent with typical owners of comparable operations. We maintain an
on how biomass emissions  active forestry research progmm to track and understand mny

potential effect from actual climate change ¢ stars
el the “f;r@'%’va WEOWN ﬁmd manage

s inithe
seientific am%w G
should

2

and do not

REGULATION OF AIR EMISSIONS IN CANADA

sovernment has propose
MS) as a compr ehe )

My 7

, 201
nd terr ﬂma %urisdictisng agreed
3. The federal proposed AQMS inch

dards for cutdoor air gt

s the country

o @ fr m“fmwcw for air zone air rhanagement within proving
and territories that targets specific sources of air emissions,

« regional airsheds that facili ted action across
borders,

o industrial ¢ s)(ir) based emission requirements that set a

nance for major industries in Cana

nental collaboration to reduce

m the transportation sector.

f

i
|

o

2 coordina

daveloping a “Greenhouse G
" that is expected 10 be propossd
2020, The framework will put
sreenhouse gas reduct £
=1 of industries, including pulp and

. govemmen{s:
will appl )

1 2044, and » have g
ong by approximately o are working on rec
s in the z‘a'fs « together with the Canadian mdmaf g\m

sas reporting require
fustion strategies, and

vernment, are
standards.

( olumbia has adopted a carbon tax and

25 have not h
ot on our G:;;erat.ie is, al huug 18
the future. We expact we will not be
=0 i"y these measures as compared
f comparable operations. We also exp
not significantly disrupt our planned

REGULATION OF AR EMISSIONS IN URUGUAY AND
POLAND
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sect we will not be
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provinces in Uruguay have established air quality monitoring
networks and ambient air objectives have been proposed for
the region where our Los Pigues mill is located.

We believe these measures have not had, and in 2014 will not
significant effect on our operations, although they may
an effect in the future. We expect we will not be
wtionately affected by these measu
owners of comparable operatic
measures will not significantly di

have, a

have such

Nith m; cal
L,hm th

isrupt our p

REGULATION OF WATER
litigation under the federal Cle
lf\w:*; Act, additional federal or state permits are now required
in some states for the application of pesticides, including
herbicides, on forest lands. Those permits have entailed
additional costs. In addition, there is continuing litigation in the
federal courts that may result in permit requirements for
poliution discharges from forest roads and other drainage
features on forest land, which would entall additiona
forest landowners including Weyerhaeuser. Finally,
atory agencies are considering exp;gn{d,r;g\ the
to federal Clean Water Act jurisdictio
s the scope and number of
ted activities and entail additional costs

5., as a result of

waters subject

in the U.S.

verhaeuser and other forest landowners

-PA is expected to issue final
s for the protection of aguatic resource
the ef any, of EPA’s water intake regulalio

on our U.S. pulp of :m.;zga‘tffac;.

what

tions until final rules are pr

in 2014, the Washington state Department of Ecology (WA
DOE) is expected to propose rules to update the Human Health
Water Quality Criteria for the protection of human health. It is
unclear what the effect, if any, of the WA DOE regulations will
have on our manufacturing operations in Washington state
November 285, 2013, amendments to the Cane
isheries Act came into force. The an‘\.emdn'}@mifs ¢
focus from habitat protection to fisheries protection m
increase penalties. Uruguay’s nationa! policy
i psammg, management and
fischarge authorization is required for Indu
se to an E.U. Water Framework Directive, Polan
op, by end of 2015, a water management plan for every

in, to reduce total nitrogen and phosphorous loads in
by 75 percent.

for water includes

ruse permits

o i to

POTENTIAL CHANGES IN POLLUTION REGULATION

» total maximum cm‘Sy
in water bodies tt
. State T

State governments continue to promuig
load (TMDL) requirements for poliutants
not meaetl state or EPA water quality standards
sents may:

fuu

= sel imits on pollutants that may be discharged to a body of

juirements, such as best mang
of nonpoint sources, including timberiand
to reduce the amounts of

operations, T poliutants,

It is not possible to estimale the capit r;e :

equired for us to meet po;hmsﬁ allo

may

s proposed state TMDL programs until

witgated,

I Canada, various levels of government have been wo mmg? to
address water issues including use, guality and man
Recent areas of focus include water ¢ i*cx:i:at;osx re&:ggiiwai
hed protection, protection of dein
and a national water guality index

We established a goal in May 2008 1o reduce water
g z"méis 20 percent by 2012, using a 2C

h a 19 percent water use mr} ction in
ur 2007 baseline
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RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND ASSUMPTIONS

Major risks and nm‘wtrumz% sumptions that we ma!w,
that affect our 55 and may cause actual results to diff
from th

WWF&WAM)&@MK?N(& STATEMENTS

ng g

ggﬁ; are o king statements include, but

& Private Securities U

» the of eral economic con

e accurate because of 1
g the assumplions we make.

i this section, as well
ause our actual result

tements, Thare is no

y our forward

maintenance h’fi{}ui?‘@{?“ié}{"ztfii

! 'T’m avants oocur, ther
tions or fina

no guarant
neial condition.

level of competition from domestic and foreign producers;
raw material availability and pri
the effect of weather,

the risk of loss from fires, floods, windstorms, hurricanes,

pis e

pest infestations and other natural disasters;

=

ard-looking statements after the

=
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slated transactions; and

bed under Risk Factors.
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ating 1o our homebui
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EXPORTING ISSUES
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» projected benefit p 1.5, dollar to the euro and the Canadian dollar, and the
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" ctions on international trade or tariffs impo on imports




RISK FACTORS

We are subject to certain risks and events that, if one or more

could adversely affect our business, our
of operations and the trading

of thein occur, ¢
financial condition, our results
price of bur common stock.

i add
matiers
as the

from time to

You should consider the following risk factors,

other information presented in this re-,pmi and th
described in “Forward-Looking Statemenis,” as well

other reports and registration statements

time with the SEC, in evaluating us, our business and an

st i our securities.

we file

investme

The risks below are not the only risks we face. Additional risks
not currently known to us or that we curremiy deem immaterial

also may aciwrfsely affect our business.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR INDUSTRIES AND
BUSINESS

MACROECONOMIC CONDITIONS

The Industries in which we operate are sensltive to
macroeconomic conditions and consequently highly cyelical.

The overall levels of demand for the products we manufacture
and distribute reflect fluctuations in iavels of endwser demand
which consequeantly impact our sales and profitabi Hy End-user
demand depends in part on general macroeconomic conditions
in North America and worldwide as well as on local economic
con Sutrent economic conditions in the United State
reflect growth below historical trends, moderately improving
consurmar confidence and general business uncertainty, fueled
hy fiscal concerns within the U.S. as well as global economic
issues such as slowing growth and rising inflation in emerging
countries. The homebuilding industry (including our Real Estate
business), has recently experienced increased demand for new
homes resulting in falling inventories, which contributed to
same improvement in selling prices for new and existing
homes. This improvement is highly depandent on continued
improvement in the overall economy, the relative health of
which has been subject 1o the numerous shocks and
including those mentioned earlier. Our Wood Products segment
is highly dependent on the strength of the hzm’wa‘m,iif‘iiy‘\g
industry. The decline in home construction a
several years, which oceurred as a result of thf;:: cradit bubble
resulted in depressed prices of and demand for
wood products and bullding materials. This was reflected ir
jower prices and demand for logs and reduced harvests in out
Timberland segment. The length and magnitude of industry
cycles have varied over time and by product, but generally
reflect changes in macroeconomic conditions. Those conditions
improved recently for some sectors such as homebuliding and

ditions. {

and recession,

tion to the

obstacles,

tivity over the past

wood products, while other sectors such as cellulose fibers
have been adversely impacted by the &1{5\“&30\% in global
economic growth, as this is a major driver of demand for
products made from cellulose fibers.

COMMODITY PRODUCTS

Many of our products are commodities that are widely
avatlable from other producers.

ause commodity products have few distinguishing
properties from producer to producer, competition ?m‘
products is based primarily on price, which is determined by
supply relative 1o demand and competition from substitute
ducts, Prices for our products are affected by many fac
outside of our control, and we have no influence over the timing
and extent of price changes, which often are volatile, Qur
profitability with respect to these products depends, in part, on
managing our costs, particularly raw material and energy costs,
which represent significant components of our operating costs
and can fluctuate based upon factors beyond our contr
of and demand for many of our products have fluctual
antly in recent quarters, while many of our
oy costs have increased, As a resull, both s

itabllity are sublect to volatility due to market forces beyond
our control.

pr

INDUSTRY SUPPLY OF LOGS, WOOD PRODUCTS AND
PULP

Excess supply of products may adversely affect prices and
marging,

Oversupply of products also may result from producers
introducing new capacity or increasing harvest levels in
response to favorable short-term pricing trends. Industry
supplies of pulp also are influenced by overseas production
capacity, which has grown in recent years and is mmc ted to
continue to grow. While the weakness of the U5, dollar In
scent years has improved the {:Qm{;any’f‘ competitive
me recent %i*@z‘\ﬁ’theming of the U dd?dr and decreases in

HOMEBUILDING MARKET AND ECONOMIC RISKS

High unemployment, low demand and low levels of consumer

confidence can adversely affect our business and results of

operations.

Many of our businesses are dependent upon the health of the
LS. housing market. Demand for homes is sensitive to
changes in economic conditions such as the level of
employment, consumer confidence, consumer income, the

TOK | B
O-K
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trate levels, The |

avalability of fina m; ng
the housing bubble,

aoy of CAPITAL MARKETS

and *33?35{5”"‘4‘*‘1 ““*‘M crisis h'ﬁ"g Deterioration In sconomic conditions and the credit markets
A could adversely affect our access to capital.

dit market conditions can impalr
rrow money or otherwise
ble 1o us, whict
ce our fmmy 10 Take adv arfxage m‘ growt
Similatly, our customers may be
y to fund:their operations. Siy

ns wu’ié have an

adulis is i mr“mv 2CCESS
aclosure rates and Jsé’s*

vated tevels, have fall

the years imme

o their ability

CHANGES IN CREDIT RATINGS

Changes In credit ratings issued by nationally recognized
rating organizations could adversely affect our cost of
financing and have an adverse effect on the market price of
pur securities.

Homebuyers’ ability to gualify for and obtain affordable
morigages could be affected by changes in government
spunisored entities and private mortgage insurance companies
supportlisg the mortgage market.

a6 rate our debt securities on f
I g results, actions that we take
sral outlook for our indusiry and their view of 1
Foutiook for the Hc“,nfm% Actions aakea by the

TEMaEins unciear.
industry by Fannie Mae
ase home morlgages an
fﬁw‘*gdg%
ve beean signi

ia and F

;‘338{::%‘ usg on awa h fist £
uld imit our access 16 the credit ma

domort;

SUBSTITUTION

Some of our products are vulnerable to declines in demand

s by these ent
thue to competing technologies or materials.

2 mmm:mg‘ an
which o S

ate with nonfiber-be
in mame?

Our products may comy
with alternative products in cert

C,!Zr

ses such as b
nd board. Changes in pni
sased fiber can change the com
fucts reistive 1o avallable alternatiy
v of those products for our ¢
3 8 E&““’le:*i\/é"‘ grows, demand for our

Any changes to income tax g
mment to eliminate or §
ma tax deduct .
s, would incréase the

3 CO8 hip. Any such
WEOWNErs mg; c‘:wu!d éamvears;@!y affect
i of new homes,

authorities also
nereases (o the cost of |
the demand for and s:




CHANGES IN PRODUCT MIX OR PRICING

Our results of operations and financial condition could be
materially adversely affected by changes in product mix or
pricing.

Our results may be adversely affected by a ¢
product mix or pricing. If we are not suce
iously announced or future price incr
storners to higher-priced products, or if ther

wcceptance of price increases or failure of
higher-priced products our results of ape

 condition f‘c}u«d be materia §iy adversely

Y our
cipated price
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INTENSE COMPETITION

We face intense competition in our markets, and the failure to
compete effectively could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We compete with North American and, for many of our product
gf lobal proﬂuz ers, some of which may have greater
rees and lower production costs than we do. The

wi 5 for competition for many of our produc
price. Our ability to maintain satistfactory margin
ids in large part on our ability to control cur costs. Our
es also are particularly sensitive to other factors
ing innovation, design, guality and service
s on these factors depending on the product line. To
:nt that one or more of our competitors become more
Ul with respect to any key competitive factor, our abili

and retain customers could be materially adversely

fmpo

wilh varying

succe
10 attract
affected. If we are unaoic\ to compete effectively, such failure

could have a mate rae effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operamm;,

Another emerging form of competition is between brands of
sustainably produced products; customer demand for ceriain
brands could reduce competition among buyers for our
products or cause other adverse effects.

in North America, our forests are ﬂ jige
Forestry Initiative z;SF! s
customers have expressed a preference |

tlines for products made from raw mater
ests certified to different standards, §i’1f‘,3u(ﬂ;’K§5
s of the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) I
1at this preference becomes a customer rz/a;ui

o

pwi¥]

et

]

extern |

rement,
wed demand and lower prices for our

there ma
products relativ

ay be red
e to competitors who can supply products
sourced from forests cerifled to corrm@urg certification
standards. If we seek to comply with such other standards, we
could incur materially increased costs for our operations or be
required to reduce harvest levels, FSC, in particular, employs

standards that are geographically variable and could cause a
material reduction in the harvest levels of some of our
timberlands, most notably in the Pacific Northwest,

MATERIAL DISRUPTION OF MANUFACTURING

A material disruption at one of our manufacturing facilities
could prevent us from meeting customer demand, reduce our
asales or negatively affect our resulls of operation and financial
condition.

5

Any of our manufacturing Tacilities, or any of our machi
within an otherwise operational facility, could cease op
unexpectedly due to a number of events, including:

sdduled r

« prolonged power failures,

naintenance outages,

« egquipment failure,
« a chemical spill or release,
» explosion of a boiler,
« the effect of a drought or reduced rainfall on its water supply,
« labor difficulties,
« disruptions in the transportation infrastructure, including
roads, bridg iiroad tracks and tunnels,
i f vvmd&;t(.)a'mzi«; earthquakes, hurricanes or other

Cterrorism,
Jlations Em(ﬁ
@l probiems.

governmental r

ther aperation

ch downth

Ary su

ne or facility damage could prevent us from

demand for our products or requ
al expenditures. if one of these machir
significant downtime, our ability to
ets and satisfy customer requirements
m ng in lower sales and income.

re us 1o

es

meet our nroc‘i uction t
could be impaired,

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

Our business and financial results may be adversely impacted
if we are unable to successfully execute on important
strategic Initiatives.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to successtully
implement important strategic inftiatives in accordance with

axpectations, which may result in an adverse ;mgaaat on our

business and financial results. These strategic initiativ

sults of operations and drive o

>r value, and include, among others:

ih operational excellence; reducing costs to
ding cost structure; and innovating in

an are

o improve our re

term shareholde maximi

cash flow througt
istry-le
sher-margin produ

gohieve indu

hi

CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS
Our operations require substantial capital.

The company has substantial capital requirements for
expansion and repair or replacement of existing

acilities or
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aquipment. ain our production equipment costs, and third-party claims foriproperty dame
with regular schaduwed main | ey pleces of equipmen injury as a result of violations of, or liabilities under
: 3¢ environmental laws and regulations.

and personal

}

3 Lne Owner a4

ndd operator of real estate, including in our
ness, we may be liable under environmen
closure and other damages rest 3
sse of hazardbus substances on or from our
n addition, surface water
may present Habilities and are subject
sournt and timing of environmental
Aifficull 1o predict, and in some cases, our

! asted amounts or the value of the
2Ty ofad

ulting from the

Gur capital resources
ietted operating needs, capiial ¢
i rffe@ufr&m&ms. 3;‘? OF BNy reason w

jon or the
or thicd-

tional contamin:

party sites srificant ndd {z{m’ costs. Any
ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS material Imbmw we incur could adver st our financial
We could incur substantial costs as a result of compliance condition or preclude us from making cap
with, violations of, or Habilities under apphcable otherwise would benefit our busir
environmental laws and other laws and regulations,

We also anticipate public policy developments
fand international level regarding climat
5, security and crme{f veness. We e

Iress isgion of carbon dioxide,
and the mon

and industrysg

aotion of the

discharges
angd otner s
ot our

vironmenial laws

ations, of the
; : : ht redi
significant expenditures. -arﬁécipea‘fe 1Ji)bh{.‘ policy
developments at the state, federal and international level
regarding taxes, heaith care and a nurmber of other areas that
could require significant expenditure

o fanglf G
» b Hit’xf’ codes, and
ity and wcfff?

CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATES

We will be affected by changes in currency exchange rates,

@l app

uring operations in Canada, Poland
slso a large exporter and compe
cry simifar 1o ours. ?hereforf;‘;(
s strength of the U.S. dollar n

i the strength of the euro

reguire us 1o f
authorization fe‘;u)w‘@

S

]

5

,and we expect o continue 1o i

AVAILABILITY OF RAW MATERIALS AND ENERGY

Our business and operations could be materially adversely
affected by changes in the cost or availability of raw materials
and energy.

opgrating and other
onmental laws ar

1 ineur su Mhlrmd!
s and

#tof reme
costs, such as oivil ¢ :
enforos 1 ( s Himiting our operations ot
reguiring corrective me Aation of ,,m Hution control We rely heavily on certain raw raterials (principally wood fiber
eguipme xfsfmaﬁm actions), clear g and chemicals) and ¢ sources {principally natural gas,

2t or oth

7%




electricity, coal and fuel oll) in our manufacturing processes.
Qur ability to increase earnings has been, and will continue to
e, affected by changes in the costs and amz!ab;lzty of such raw
materials and energy sources. We may nol be i
offset the effects of higher raw material or en
hedging arrangements, price increases, pr
improvements or costreduction programs.

PEOPLE

Our business is dependent upon atiracting, retaining and
developing key personnel.

55 depends, to a significant
r ability to attract, retain and develop key seni
1 went and operations ma personnel, Ou
failure to recruit, retain, and develop these key personnel could
adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations.

We believe that our succe

Upon our

nagement

TRANSPORTATION

We depend on third parties for transportation services and
increases In costs and the availability of transportation could
materially adversely affect our business and operations,

i business depends on the transportation of a large number

f products, both domestically and intermationally. We rely
primarily on third parties for transportation of the products we
s delivery of our raw

manufacture or d,S‘f’thC as well a
i cular, a significant poriion of the goods we
ure and raw materials we use are transported by

5, which are highly regulated.

rials, In part

It any of our third-party transportation providers were to fail to
deliver the goods we manufacture or distribute in a timely
manner, we may be unable to sell those products at full value,
or at all. Similarty, if s;my of these providers were to fail to
deliver raw materials to us in a timely manner, we may be
unable to manufacture our pmducu in response 10 customer
demand. In addition, if any of these third parties were to cease
oper’gzi;ong or cease doing business with us, we may be unable

to replace them at reasonable cost.

Any failure of a third-party transportation provider to deliver raw

materials or finished products in 8 tmely manner could harm

our reputation, negatively affect our customer relationships and
an

have a material adverss effect on owr financial condition

£1

resulis of O wHon.

sportation rates or fuel
rsely affect our sales anc

In addition, an increase in tran
surcharges could materially adve
profitability.

REIT STATUS AND TAX IMPLICATIONS

I we fail to remain qualified as a REIT, our taxable income
would be subject to tax at corporate rates and we would not
be able to deduct dividends to shareholders.

y taxable vear in w‘r%ir‘h we fail to qualify as ¢
under the Internal Reve

are entitied to relie

ble income.

» We \.«/r;w!d ;1 1o federal and state income s
taxable income at regular corporate rates.

- We also would be disqualified from treatment as a

> four taxable years following the year during whi

alification.

in computing ¢

e sub

ch we lost

Qualification as a REIT involves the application of highly
technical and complex provisions of the Intermal Revenue Code
to our operations and the determination of various factual
matters and circumstances not entirely within our control.
are only Himited judicial or administrative interpréetations of
these provisions. Although we operate in a manner consiste
with the REIT qualification rules, we cannot assure you that w
2main a0 qualified.

There

re or will 1

ite tax laws are constantly under

d in the legislative process, the

the United States Department of the
4 xing authorities. Changes to the s
Uit adversely affect our shareholders. We cannot pr
a%niy Wmmm Wmm in what forms, or with what ¢
ste 1o us or our shareholders may be

3&\3“

In ade

Certain of our business activities are subject to corporate-level
income tax and potentially subject to prohibited transactions
tax.

Under the Internal Revenue Code, RETs generally m

in the ownership md management of income produ x;“

e Company, this generally includes own

timberland pmﬁa“f} for the production ;am‘{

nber. Accordingly, the manufacture and sa

waam% ;;>m ‘%sc’tf:a the harvesti =g ant sale of logs, and the
sertain timberfands, the mant

>f gmip products, the development of real et

ndd sale of s s-family houses and the development

land and lots for real estate development are

more of our wholly-owned taxable

use such activities could

g REIT income and could constitute

“prohibited transactions.” Prohi 4 transactions are defined

by the Internal Revenue Code g ”ah\ to be sales or other

dispositions of property to customers in the 'wdmeﬁar‘y course of

8 trade or business. By conducting our bus s in this manner

iy us of

tor sale of ¢

and sale of

;pi’

3
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we believe that we s v the REIT requirements of the Internal  Board of Directors, in its sole discration, determines the
Revanue mm and are not-subject to the 100 percent tax that amount of guarterly dividends to be provided to our
if & REIT were to conduct a pm hibited sholders based on consideration of a number of factors.
el income of our T include, but are not limited to, our results of
i flow and capital requirements, economic
. i ) : 4 siderations, borrowing capacily and other
extert of our use of our TRS may affect the price of our _ o )
. e factors, including debt covenant restrictions that me
r1 shares rejative 10 e i

could be imp

Impose

s, future acquisitions and
changes in the price and demand
seneral market demand for timberlands
properties that have higher and
our dividend levels may fluctuate.

We cond 1 s‘,;if,nig it po
T‘%‘Qs Our use of our Tr

sas e

255 attiy

, production and sale of wood Brod
eveloprment and singie

property. Ou

o complete desired like-kind eexche«:ngff
"

nberlands and real estate we sell

transactior

senerally seek to

When we sell timberlands and real estate, we
sets m @ R ;IT may m-a mateh these sales with the acquisition of suitable replacement
5. This limitation timberlands. This allows us “like-kind exchange” treatment for
these transactions under section 1031 and related regulations
of the Code. This matching of sales and purchases ;:n“@vm@sa s
. most importantly the d : i
n the property sold unti ultimate d!b_ﬁ(f)‘a !
srty. While we attempt to compie
actical, we may not be able 1o do
arious factors, including the lack of
s replacement properly on acceplabie
ity to complete a gualifying like-kind
the time frames required by the

d exchange treatment would

28 percent of the valu
represented by &
may aff :

~urthermaore, our y
rcommon sha

5, whec;h may not use

ividenc

- N respect 1o the property 8
ing reduction in eﬁm‘iﬁgs and ¢
wolders ag dividends

{orq ity xmmm 10 she

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are a party to a number of legal proceedings, and adverse
judgments in certain legal proceedings could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition.

dividends from our

affects of pending |
weries cannot be det
sclosure in Note

ymmitments and Cont
3 Statements containg manag
such Hitigation will have on ou

assurance that the outcome

idends are not guaranteed ¢

istribute

(ks

a? gzrs may be 1
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U
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ge or cash payment

its of operations of
¥
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portion of any dan 5
could materially and adversely affe
cash flows for the quarter or yelar in which we
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EXPORT TAXES

We may be required to pay significant export taxes or
countervailing and anti-dumping duties for exported products.

We may experience reduced revenue :
our businesses as a resull of export taxes or coL
anti-dumping duty assessments. Intematic
oeour ‘frgrzqu ntly and can be taken to an M
resolution of unfair trade practi
ple, there have been many dispu
ments regarding sales of softy
nd the United States. The current
n October 2006 requires our Canadiar
ities 1o pay an export tax when the price o{‘ ‘i?t“f“bi?f‘
elow a threshold price.
ercent if a province exceeds its total allotted export
is possible that additional countervailing duty and

or simitar type tariffs could be imposed on

irtervail ing

NOOd Tum
Softwood Lu

E‘J’di’& it
antidumping tamf fs,
us in the future. We may experience reduced revenues and

fs or to the
These

adverse effe

marg{ima in any business that is subject to such t&
of the settlements of such intermnational disputes,
it terms CGL,?Q have a mat

dition,

facility closures or impairy

SASTERS

Our business and operations could be adversely affected by
weather, fire, infestation or natural disasters.

NATURAL DI

f rainstorms, fires, pe
j . Because our manufacturing procs
primarily use wood fiber, in many cases fmm OUr OWN
timbertands, in the event of material damage to our

tim ‘)@Y’l;:"m(‘f‘f%, our operations could be disrupted or our

production costs could be increased, As is typical in the
forestry industry, we do not ins losses of timber,

s due to these

including los

ACQUISITION OF LONGVIEW TIMBER LLC

We may fall to realize the full benefits anticipated as a result
of the acyuisition of Longview Timber LLC.

he acquisition vg;és deg@e j
ad bus“"pts opporn
ning our busines
not fully realize our expected

ies and growth prospects,
'f‘%f(,}‘ﬂt@ significant efforts and

0 be reguired to make

n order to

$5 opportunities, ¢
Integrating operations 1y
expenditures from us. We may als
unanticipated capital “Xi‘)€%¥m§1t.3?‘€?’s or investments

The export tax could be as high

maintain, Improve or sustain the operations or assets of
Longview Timber or take write-offs or impairment charges or
recognize amortization mpom ses resulting w‘mm hf\ vwz‘:wis;%‘t:ix;;rﬂ.
and may be subje
g 1o Longview Irmbe and its business. I a
i ability to fully integrate the busih
ly bas;g the irxgeigtat
wing the acgu

iy o on a time iong of future

" oparations folio isition might not be met.

REAL ESTATE TRANSACTION

The Real Estate transaction may not be completed on the
terms or timeline currently contemplated, or at all,

anhounced that the Con
ate Company. an indirect wholly uwmmi
sub ary of the Company ("“WRECO”), had entered into a
Tmnwct on Agreement dated November 3, 20143 with TR
Pointe Homes, Inc. (“TRI Pointe”) and one of TRl Pointe’s
subsidiaries ("Merger Sub”). Pursuant to the Transaction
Agreement, W@ymhaoucm Company will distribute all the
shares uf common stock of WRECO to its shareholders (i) on a
s, (i) In an exchange offer or (iil) In a combination
& ”i stribution™}. Immediately following tf
ution, Merger Sub will merge with and into WRECO (the
: WRECO surviving the Merger and becoming a
owned subsidiary of TRI Pointe.,

npany an

wholly

q{'}’wmiejn of the transaction is subject to numerous
including ; <~nn~;ummatior of ¢ e:’ta vt financi 3

e
cas‘kd%i_iom,

c;{)iamvazs, \i'\;’} me
Intax opinions, and (v) other customary closing conditions,
Wc* can make no assurances that the transaction will be
consummated on the terms or timeline currently contemplated,
or at all. We have and will continue 1o expend significant
management time and resources and incur significant
expenses due to legal, advisory and financial se

refated to the transaction.

1 ff,ei;'az' of
3

RISKS RELATED TO OWNERSHIP OF OUR
COMMON STOCK

STOCK-PRICE VOLATILITY

The market price of our common stock may be influenced t
vhich are beyond our control, inclu
under "Risks Related to our Industri

many factors, some of w
those described above

and Busi

the following:

« actual or anticipated fluctuations in results or
our competitors’ operating results,

announcements by us or our competitors of new g:;mdum s,
capacity changes, significant contracts, acquisitions or

strategic investments,

our operating

=
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%\WW growth rates, entitled to receive a fundamental chang
economic conditions, amount equal to the present value of all remaining dividend
andations mgfmdmg payments on thelr mandatory convertible preference shares

d GHE ! s the mandatory convertible preference shares
cost mf acquiring us or othe
ng us of removing incumbent

t i

w our growth rate and our
» tM fi mmim market w‘d

S ’f@ atures ¢

atyst ¢ G\ji%?ag?} of o
ornimon stoek by our €
,%ﬁcaﬂi sieckh;e%d@. g

ED STAFF COMMENTS

There are ho unresolved commaents that were received from the
Y OUr ;xsr*czd & or current reporis under the
+ of 1034,

has been signifi
volume of secur
~ts industry that often has
formance of particular co

PROPERTIES

Details about our facilities, production capacities and Jocations

ave %ma volatile market prices for their
stion brought against them. If

Some companies that
securities have had secl

oy e e et re I oo e res it are found in the Our Business < What We Do section of this
litigation of this type i3 inat us, It could result in
rEpOIT.

substantial costs and would divert management’s attention and

5 about our Timberlands properties
“What We Do/ Timberlands/Where
about our Wood Products properiies

« For det

PREFERENCE SHARES

Ouy common shares will rank junior to our mandatory /What We Do/Wood Products/Wh
sonvertible preference shares with respect to dividends and o POt ils about our Cellulose Fibers pﬁ,pﬂﬂis‘f‘
amounts pavable in the svent of our liguldation. We Do/Celluiose Fi

; {
wr Heat Estate Q*OQ*?}?’{ es, go o O
We Do/Real Fstate/Where We Do It

1 shares will rank jun

ence shares w
amounts payable
o wzranmgﬂm This means th
3 ave been paid or g¢
A nddiy ﬂgé na\:}d{ai‘sm convertible pre :
all past dividenc ods and the then cur mm di vmvmi period,
o dividents may be de a patd on our commaon shares,
swise, in the event ¢ ntary or involuntary liguidation,
fution or winding-up. no distribution of our assets may be
> 1o holders of our common she g paid to

atory converlible

t’ ontinger
Mammmnm for a summary of

Cortain provisions in the mandatory convertible preference
shares could delay or prevent an otherwise beneficial
talisover or takeover attempt of us and, thevefore, the ability
of holders o exercise thelr rights associated with a potential
fundamental change.

if & fumcasmmw change
”{ 16, holders of the

&hzamb may have the right to
srgnice shares, in whole

o pany to
wiere 10 oceur on or ;3"
mandatory convertible
corvert thelr mandatory Cw‘f‘l"‘itsxﬂf ; ’

an increased conve




MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED
mmm«m DER MATTERS AND ISSUER WUW‘WM ES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Our common stock trades on the followin changes under the symbol WY

» New York Stock Exchange and
« Chicago Stock Exchange

Lt

As of December 34, 2043, there were 8,85¢
closing market prices for our common stock for each of the
Quarterly Financial Information {unaudited] in the Notes to €

TION ABOUT SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR 185UAI MDER GUR BEQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN

nsolidated Financial E?{uii“:ﬂi)ﬂ?‘:

2N m{so.; plans approved ¢ hiol

3 holders of record of our common shares. Dividend-per-share data and the range of
four quarters in 2013 and 2042 are included in Note 24: Se 3

 holders | N/ & N/A

Equity wsation plans not approved by s¢

N/A

20,897,209 $23.42

18,902,470

e there Is no sxercise price ass

inted with restricied siock units and performanee share ynits

INFORMATION ABOUY COMMON STOCK SR

e’af\pur‘chase any common shares in 2013 or 2012,
iflion under the 2008 stock repurchase program. On Au 3

sk repurchase program and approved the 2011 stock repurchase pre
million of sutstanding shares. During 2011, purchased 1,0
2011 program. As of December 31, 2013, we 3’3;&@ remaining author

for $20 1

824 shares of common stock for $17 mil

on of $27

WEVERHAEUSER COMPANY » 2013 ANNUAL REPORT AND FORM 10-K

., we repurchased 1,199,800 shares of common
2014, our Board of Directors terminated the 2008

armn under which we are authorized to repurchase up to
Hion under the

stock

million for future share repurchases.

G



TOTAL BHAREHOLDER RETURN

COMPARISON OF F

e

Weyarh

21 H

e S&P Global

he S&P 500 Index and

dends received arg v

arg the jast trading




SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER-SHARE FIGURES

£

i

4

sharehotders

e l & i i R
v ';’v" e / S . i o { ;.»»\v» oo
e ‘ 0 | o LD o
i ff‘ Sl i i i L e e 'Mm‘ ey L ',?a)),

F% ’39”

e
i \(

2,800
HiBby 9,227 9,724

583,548 542,303 | 536,425

BR800

Mplement our o E i ted to our sharehoide ] wiated aa

Vit
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS (MD&A)

WHAT YOU WILL FIND IN THIS MD&A

£,

Our MD&A includes the follo

i gem?mf‘
s, legal proceedings and other

enviroomental mmuc.
sontingehcies; and
accounting matters — where

policles and areas requirin

=

=

s Gritical accounting
a%“zd estimates

ECONOMIC AND MARKET ﬁ%mﬁ“m?@%
AFFECTING OUR OPERATIONS

the U.S. economy continued U
3 m in ihe U, 5 economy was hind

st *at?g which {alt ad um:k@
affected the seonomy, smﬁ::aagg anticipated
nedicators. The U.S. housing
sctors, continued to show

3 as lower inventories of new and
nereases in n ton and

mm ors significantly
improvements in kay ¢
market, white affected by the
signs of im ;\mva«w nt in 201

exi \zﬁ:if?‘j homes Jed 1o in

rises in home values, The stre market
£y affects our Real Estate, Wood ale!
1 ands segments.

5 on hullding single-family he
Census Bureau, 1ot
23 fﬁcu““*}d units, with si
the e ’
ase in single family 8
‘nt% units. Multifan
3 1o 305 thousand uni
12, While a significant
siriand remains well omm\v 1 miiism oF more

m‘ ’i cmr,a 20 O/u in 2(
430 thousand units.
incresse over 207 ,;E;

'. ave ‘m}ged
h a tfa.,/ percent

his fevel repres

A4

Wood Products primarily selis into the new residential building
and repair and remodel markets. Demand for wood products
has continued.to. ‘;“z’}pmw as housing starts have increased.
Thig has resulted i highet prices than those observed in 20172
s for most commodity wood products were
ses observed in Douglas fir
sRLEIZIN *-%%g‘ﬁer prices led to img
f rates for ber and O5B. Despite the

yroved

s Timberlands segment is affec

based bua;dmg products as well a8

. several years of deferred harvest

e ated increased inventories and as

a result southern pine log prices were modestly higher in 2013
while western log prices, helped by resurgent demand from

China and Japan, increased more substantially in 2013

the prog

axport

tdemand and the

. dotlar was

Cellulose Fibers is primarily affected by globa
e e:‘mw strength of the U.S. dollar. The U.S
ively stable 4:'>r‘npar<~'*r* to most global cur
me notable exceptions. The volatility which
erized i the Euro in 2012 was mostly absent in 2013
3 i miv agairsz the euro for much of

ey on ]

during

SUND jeme mated cas’{s and nad apo
e Fibers pricing. Demand in the key gt
ope and China improved from 2012,




FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

et Sales by Segment

$4,000

$3,000

$2,000
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Net Eamings Attributable to Weyerhaeuser Common

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Shareholders
i reviewing our important 1o Our net eamings attributable to Weyerhaeuser common

et~ primarily

holders increased $155 million -~ 40 p
s following:

- thess terns: sha

unigle

tions refer o net s
rice plus fraight minus norm
ibution to samings can be pos

nefore interes

in out Reg* Estale ngmm» W
{1 singlefamily home closings and
for homes closad.

e taxes from an expe
20 2 1o & bene ) arlly related 1o a previously
untecognized tax benefit recorded in 2013,

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
HOW WE DD IN 2013

sial Hesults

These increases in our eamings were partially offset by

« g BABE million increase in charge
mxd asset impairments primarily related to
ripal rmaﬂ‘ charge relating 1o a large masterplanned

tate Sag:h{:fl '

closure
non-cash

for restructuring

COMPARING 2042 WITH 2011

Net Sales
Net sales increased $843 million — 14 percent
due to the followir

$0.10

- primarily

o Wond Products nyc*p,ms*f it sales incre
primarily due to hig 34 vmwnesa,
e} s&% ling prices

COMPARING 2013 WITH 2042

Netl Sales

.LOG acre master ;}iam*zed z
ale of commer acreage and
Califoimia and increased home

sales increasad
realizations
dum fines.

F=3 /ﬁ

oA

, ;'iaw pffset by a deueza&
; Mnfgmam sai
v axport ang ¢

arily due 1o

wwer o

. primarily
ncl ;m;wwd average prices

gue 1o incre
for homes closed,
sob $48 million




Net Earnings Attributable to Weyerhaeuser Commaon TIMBERLANDS

Shareholders HOW WE DID IN 2013
Our net eamings attributable to Weyerhaeuser common
shareholders increased $54 million — 16 percent -~ primarily
due to the following:

W&\ mpcm‘ qz}iw volume and annual production data for our
Timt s segment in Our Business/What We Do/

5> million increass in gross margin from our

ots segment, primarily due to higher price
‘?’{iﬁ furr ‘w OSB and plywood;

a1 ‘l,% niflion pretax gain recognized in 2

ement plan amendment; B il Cordribution o Eamin g
for restructuring, closures and ¢ s

$51 miliion; and

on of net sales to unaffiliated custom
and net contribution to eamings for the

o 8 $48 mi;!ioz increase in gma% margin from our Real Estate
gl
. in dgross margin from our Cellulose
gment, primarily due to lower pulp price realizations;
« @ in of $152 million on the sale of 82,000 & f
non-strategic timberlands in 2011; and
« 8 *M 17 million Increase in income taxes due to
income in our TRS in 2012 compared to 2011, ¢ 8
primarily due to foreign ta 19 i
14 77 ty
22 25 )
31 53 1
108 28 165 20
1,077 1,044 33
intersegment sates:
United States 74 @B
Other 4% 14
Subtotal inte 546 118 37
| Total $1,690 5382 $ 70
Net cumtribution to samings § 470 % 322 % 49y $148 5(169)
i

13, we purchased 100 percent of the squity
view Timber LLC (Longview Timber) for cash
lebl. The sales and net contribulion to eamings
from the acquisition date to the end of
sre inctuded in the West results of our Timberiands
segment, Longview Timber was and continues to be a supy
to our Wood Products segment and those sales are shown in
intersegment sates. More information on this transaction can
be found in Note 3: Longview Timber Purchase in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.,

WEVERHAEUSER COMPANY » 2



COMPARING 20:L3 WITH 2012 of 4 percent, as a result of increased harvest Jevels in
response to increased third party demand.

» Sales frc>rr 1 our international operations increased

$20 mitlion, primarily due to increased plywood pric

& 33 percent increase in plywood sales

Mot Sales « Unaffiliated Customers
o unaffiliated customers incres

sad $266 million -

increased by $14 million due to ¥r
percent, partially offset by lower

) ;ré f}m:smm ug prices and a 31
s volume as a resull of increased export
and the purchase of Longview |
n tog sales increased $23 million d
v a B percent increase In sales volume s
2 thinning activity.

e g pr

s ware partially offset by

erais, ol and gas revenue

a5k . i . 3
she increases were partially offset by: [ gas prices; anG

iion decrease in sales-from ourintemational
ons primarily due m a shift toward internal sales of
HonS prim: \ ” abe Intersegment Sales

mmxu%m‘ﬂ red products; ar i I ;
» 2 %9 mitlion mwe , Intersegment sales increased $87 million — € percent —

primarily from the following:

intersegment Sales e . e
g » 8 $23 million increase due to higher sales volumes in the
Ivhes e 47 4 - )

inte Pk West and South, partially offset by lower log prices in th

BrmE

§

iy dug 1o the fﬁii@wsr@g: South: and

due to increased Canadian |

» & $71 milion increase, primarily due
ad volume in our legdacy Weslem
4 the purchase of Longview Tin
aillion increase due 1o higher log

Mot contribution to eamings
Met contributio ings decreased $169 million —
34 percent - pr iy from the foliowing:

Net contribution to eamings
roings increased $148 million

e due 1o the sale of 82,000 acres of
nds in 2014;

g the mix of export log sales
compared to domestic log sales decreased in the West and
poth domestic and export log prices were lower in the West;
a $272 milllon decrease in mineral incorne, primarily as a
result of lower natural gas prices;

A $15 million decrease due to fewer thmb
i er and better-use land sales; and

Hlion increase in Q;}{E;'Zﬁ'{iﬁg costs in the We
logging and maintenance

mitlion increase dug to W

o T N ]
$ volumes and

o & 1
dermand “m‘ axport and domestic logs in our legacy Wastern
timberiands. Harvest levels increased 5 percent in our legacy

é iﬁ’%b mithion de

%

Weastiarh timberlands;
« @ $49 million increase due to-higher iw ;“ ices in our lagacy
W(‘%{ zwhmmnm and the South; anc
illion increase due to the purch

2z

4 exchanges

B

increases were partially offget by
5

P f

miflion merease in operating costs in our

i Himberlands pri mamy d 18 to & higher | of nighet . X ) .

o ! hove lterms were partially ofiset by

rom internat and o
> costs; and

mitlion increase in selling, gen

# Longview Timoer,

e, priynarily dus 1o higher sales volur

o and ex’mri lngs and an in
it i the West and 18 percent in the

in earhings from our international

COMPARING 2012 WITH 20141 caf

Net Sales ~ Unaffiliated Customers

jue to higher plywood prices and sales

Net sales to unaffiliated custorr
3 percent — primarily due to the following:

=

&

& Inereps e e IO e .
increased $33 million ] tb/ million increase due to higher log prices in the South,

et $37 miltion due to increased
ed price realizations

« Southern log sales increas
vg volumes of 14 percent and Incres




WOO0D PRODUCTS

HOW WE DID IN 2043

We report sales volume and annual production d
Wood Products business segment in Our Busir
Do/Wooid Products.,

ata for our
s/ What We

and Net Contribution to Earml sotl Produ

pot sales from SE4,009 £3,0588 £2.278 LT 5782
continuing -
aperationg :
§ 441 % 120§ (243 $az1
Operat
Net contribution to ey . {25) 28
earnings from
discontinued
operations
et contribution to $:44% 0§ 420§ (288) $321 $388

warnings

COMPARING 2043 WITH 2012

zmro jedd
and

revenues by Sz@gdeniﬁg OUr Cu
/ icing new products, growing our spec
commodity bullding products business and Improving
operational capabilities. These improvement efforls and beller
market conditions, have resulted in higher production rates
product lines.

in

all pfimary

Net Sales

Net sales increased $951 million —
due to the following:

31 percent

solumes increased
ns increased 22
5 1t vu3 umes increased 11 percent and &
s realizations increased 20 parcent
ion
age sales realizations ingre

« Structural lumb 10 percent

shipment voiumes incre

hipment volumes increased 16 percent
izations increased 11 parcent.
ipment volumes increased 18 percent
ations increased 6 {3@:«:@?;1‘,\

seducts purchased for

wcmd =3%m{>{w s
@m% average sales r
Complementary pre
40 percent.

o

=

Creas

Net Contribution to Earmings
Net contribution to earnings increased $3
from:

Vincrease, primarily due to highe
ng acros major product lines;
increase In sales volume

ot

14 mitlion increase in other products

i’ﬂp OVEITIE

These increases were partially offset by:

rillion increass in log cost due to continued strong
sing iog prices;
2 in freight expense due o

P ]
@ G $Z;.‘£

m%“i(‘m increas

higher

v a %8 msl!sorz increase inman sts due to higher
raw material, mammmeam@ and labor sts; and

» a $27 million increase in selling, general and administrativ
costs.

COMPARING 2012 WITH 20214

Restructuring, ©
During 2011, we recognized $29 million of impairment ¢
n the Wood ?‘“?'Giﬂu(i sgment primarily related to the dex
rmanently close four engineered lumber facilities
2y previously indefinitely closed. Thase facilities are
in Albany, Oregon; Dodson, Louisiana; Pine Hill, Alabams
estructuring, «

slosures
or the segment were $64 million

Sdosures and Asset Impairments

Simsboro, Louisian: 5 Ang asset

WEYERHABUSER COMPANY » 2013 A




Net Sales Here Is a comparison of net
earnings for the last three yea

Mot Soles and Me

Pt

it volumes increased 27
rations increassd 36 percent
id saction shzsmezﬂn vt

! plywood
price realizations incre
s produced increased 18 pe

i

ssadd for resale r

{6}

Totad $2,058 548 BLR04)
Het vontribution $ 452 H{23) S{2R8)

to sarmings

COMPARING 2013 WITH 2012

Mot Sales

$48 mittion ~ 3 percent — primarily dug

g of & percent for pulp, result
d, which was partially offset by
s of $9 per ton ~ 1 percent

ol g reaisza{zsﬂs decres
- resulting primarily from mix of products.

increase in . L
Met Contribution to Earnings

Net contribution to earnings decre
CELLULOSE FIBERS
HOW WE DID N 2013

se in pulp sales re:

Ay off
g msﬁrg

y a $16 million

COMPARING 2042 WITH 2011

et Sales

$204 miliion — 10 percent — ;

4

sad $108 per ton

\

sonomies and a
& was ;:»zartm!iy
e valued products.

sulting from we
ak euro. The effect of the p
fael by an improved sales mix to




« Sales volumes for liquid ,oai:kagmg beoard decreased
2,000 tons — 3 percent — as the result of weaker demand
in Japan.

Met Contribution to Eamings

ribution to earnings decreased $229 million

primarily due to:

Net cont

salizations,
ryalue

1. warehousing and

other operating costs.

REAL ESTATE
HOW WE DID IN 2043

Family unit statistics for our Real Estate
in Our Business/What We Do/Real Estate.

We report single

business *«eagémm
Here is a comparison of net sales and net contribution to
earnings for the last three years:

Mot {Zﬁmié‘ ot

Total §1,278 0 $1,070 $ 208

Net contribution S{R3Ly ¢ a0s & B8 8 {338) § 47

to eamings

On June 16, 2013, we announced that our Bua of Directors
authorized the exploration of strategi ; ith re 1

o Weyet

ding and 1
at it ‘n?eﬂdpa to consider a broad 1
including, but not limited to. continuing
or a merger, sale or spin-off of the busin
4, 2043, we announced that we |
tion agreement dated as of November 3,
Pointe Homes, inc. {TRI Pointe). Pursuant to the transaction
ment, WRECO will be divested through a Reverse Moryi
ction and ultimately become a wholly owned
subsidiary of TR Pointe. More information on this transaction
can be found in Note 4: WRECO Divestiture in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements and on our Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on November 4, 2013,

1 ransa

COMPARING 2043 WITH 2012

Net Sales
Net sales increased $208 million — 19 percent — primarily due
srease of ”‘534 9 mmmr. in revenue fror

R e average price of hc;zms close d
ant Fmrr $376,000 in 201 i
siore basis, prices have inc
5 have remained steady

10
L

5. Our marg

by a decrease of $141 million in
1ot sales. 2012 included the s
d community in Houston,
ales were primarily residential iot
related 1o a school site.

Net Contribution to Earnings
Net contribution to eamings decreased $
due to:

36 million,

primarily

mmi‘s an ”.3

+ 8 B350 million increase in charges i(}r impairn
restructuring including a $343 milli

gs and $6 million retavust

it divestitre'in 2013; and

« @ 60 million decrease in contributions to eamings from land
and ot se

i
1in related to

ng cs%z‘

creases were partfally offset by a $73 million incre
farnily operations due to higher vol
s prices of homes closed. Single
22.0 percent in 2013 ¢

ting changes in mix.

Bution for

sompared

COMPARI

MG 20012 WITH 2040
Net Sales

Net sales increased $232 million — 28 percent — primarily

""r'g' revenues increased $14
creased 21 perce
rage price of homes clos

4 Oin '2012 from $402 0 OC

11
=
]
ol

=3
)
i
@
&
0
=
o
@
o
N
@
&
&
(w
s

5’\
‘:\

sale {;f a 4,,2{10 acre master
on, Texas and the sale of comr
sinily fots in southern California,

g%arzs*z{&ti

Net Contribution to Eamings

mings increased $47 million — 81

vy due to:

=

a $54 million increase in contribution from land and lot
sales; and
an $8 million decre

restructuring.

ments and

=

e in charges for impair
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Thase improvemer

it profi

1 from single-family housing
improvemen t‘
fHaeat by t
4 and lower single-family gross
s marging were 207
3 pereent in 2011,

@ gains or charges not refated to or

An

aat income and other Unalloca ftems in 20138 included
part of our investment

a $10 million pretax gain for the sale of
in Lisison Technologies inc, See Note 9: Equity Affiliates in the

s in 2012 included a gain of &'E
tirement plan amenémém
o Other Postretirement Benefit

d Financial Staternents for more

from the b

rease inthe ¢

£

three years was:

P

0 %48 mitlion in 207

,g.gmesem They include a
« $384 million in 2011,

{ cor um@m ae.a‘tiom, pension

increases (reductions) in our armount of out ding debt were:

oy s
iy and

123 includes $11 million in fees related
in the acmus;u%im of Longview

ding this item and loss on
@etmy t«‘ex‘ttmg;;m%wm&mt of f:.i@i}‘t, interest expense decreasad (

Nange
)

to lower average interest rale on remaining debt.

noome taxes for our continuing

ons over the last ’{! hree years wa

56 15} i
s 1 ncoms {90} {309 130 “ o in 2003,
{ 4 %m 2012 and
ia u ., we recorded ?“e oilowing tax benefits

r tax benefit related to unrecognized tax

et o
aarings

prbation o

548 ${(T 5 (9W $ 90 During 2012, we recorded the following tax benefits or charge

» & $36 million tax charge related to a previously announced
postretiremant plan amendment and

s 8 $17 million tax benefit related to income tax settlements.




During 2041, we recorded the following tax benefits or charges:

« & $76 million tax benefit
associated with the repatriation of Canadian earnin
a $57 million tax charge resulting from the sale of not
strate imberlands and

Hion tax benefit due 1o the early exti

related to foreign tax credits
g3

@

1

fevel tax on
. We wil

not subject to corporate
distributed to shareho

a REIT, we generall y are
income of the REIT that

iders

however, i’)ﬁ subject to mrpas'ate taxes on builth & (the
excess air market value over tax basis at January 1, 2010)
on sales 3*’ real property (other than standing timber) held by

the REIT during the first 10 years following the REIT conversion
We also will continue to be required to pay federal corporate
income taxes on earnings of our TRS, which principally includes
our manufacturing businesses, our real estate development
business and the portion of our timberlands segment income
included in the TRS,

tax characteristios

(‘st;ar;}:mrxf:mg m sham%z@ defs f:)r tzw years ended December

so.81 $0.50

e return of capital

Total distributions $6.62 | S0.60

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We are committed to maintaining a sound, conservative capital
structure that enables us to:

» protect the interests of our shareholders and lenders and

« have access at all times to major financial markets.

CASH FROM OPERATIONS

Cash from operations includes:

1 from customers;
amplovees, suppliers and others:

yaid 1o ¢
i for interest on our debt; and

sald or received for taxes,

snsolidated net cash provided by our operations wa

« §1,004 million in 2013,

« $B8A million in 2012 and
« $291 million in 2011,

COMPARING 2043 WITH 2042

Net cash provided by operations increased $423 million in
2013 as compared with 2012, primarily due m a

$4,476 million incr 2 in cash recelved from custo
partially offset by a $1,031 million increase in
pliers and others as sales and pre
;3 our vmou froducts, Timberlands and
bles, primarily in our Wood Product
Hicantly in 2013 compared to

5, SUD

2012 as

COMPARING 2042 WITH 2011

Net cash provided by operations increased $290
2012 as compared with 2014:

mitlion in

Cash we received from customers in our Wood Products and
Real Estate segments increased $931 million, primarily due
to increased sales and cash received of $120 million for land
and ot sales.

» Cash paid for interest decreased $69 million, primarily due to
the early retirement of $518 million of debt in 2011 \fv@ paio
interest of $351 million in 2012 compared t¢ $420 million In
2011,

» Net cash inflows related to income taxes incre

L million. We received income tax reft zré«~ of §
2012 and paid $28 mitlion in 20174,

Partially offsetting tt inereases were:

s Cash paid to empl suppliers and others increas
$638 million in our Wood Products and Real Estate

segments due to increased production.
+ Cash we received from customers in our Cellulose Fibers

segment decreased $129 million due to decreased sales.

Pension Contributions and Benefit Payments Made and
Expected

During 2013, we:

contributed $79 million for our Canadian registered plan in
accordance with minimum funding rules and respective
pravincial regulations
contributed to or mzﬁagﬁi benefit payments for our Canadia
nonregistered pension plans of $3 million;

: he "}9?‘?‘ pavments of $21 million for our U5,
2d pension plans; and
2fit payments of $34 million for our U.S,
1 other postretirement plans.,

s

7

and

There was no ’nimu m required contribution for our U.8.
gualified plan for 2043, nor ware any contributions made to this
plan in 2013,

AND EORM 10K
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year-end assets and

contribute or mal

of %5)5— ritiion

fsion 3!”4% for 2014,

5&1&)7 bittion, %Qr an
bittion. More information can
> i the Notes to

m W)um} in f\/:

anditures for 20104

We anticipate that our net capital exy

i@

excluding sz-.xc:cqmmtw) ns - 10 appfc $390 million
However, that amount could change due to:

ase

YARIABLE INTERESYT ENTITIES
on note and received
ur timber monetization special
dertaken in 2003, Net proce
mfw mation about these entit

to one ¢

fion. Mor ,which

il N conne @ sale of nonstra
timbertands in 2003, can be mmd in Note 11: Variable Interest
Entities in the Notes to sdl Finarncial Statements and

our annual report on Forrm 10-K for 2003,

were for

consolids

ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ? AFFILIATES

. we sold part of

our investment in Lis
i cash, which is
m investing activitie

”?s%sfa :;‘i@ws, See Note ¢

PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF NONSTRATEGIC ASSETS

5 over

sale of nonstrategic ¢

13 for the sale of various non-strategic

2012 for the sale of various non-strategic

=

2014 including:

J million for the sale of B2, GG’) acres of non-
na f"wﬂ\wr*&*?m "J?Sh o1

2 of cther non-strategic

limcussed in No
8 335§f§ted ;—;mrx:;ai Staterments.

FINANCING

Cash from financing activities I




« changes in book overdrafts,

» proceeds from stock offerings and option exercises and

« payments of cash dividends and repurchasing stock,
Consolidated net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
was!

» $762 million in 2013,

{444y mitlion in 2012 and
mittion in 2041

v Tirm

i

following:

» 29 million common shares on June 24, 2013, at the price of
$27.75 per share for net nm(*“e ds (3f $781 miflion;

“ KM million common shares 8, 2013, at tm--e mice of
$27.75 per share for net proce >d of $116 mitlion, In
connection with the exercise of an overallotment opti

« 13.8 mij

s
H

S 0onJu

~

ion of our 6.375 percent Mandatory Convertible

2 Shares, Series A, par value $1.00 and liguidation
ice of $50.00 per share on June 24, 2013, for net
s of $669 million.

¢

id $41 million in fees related to a bri foan in 2013,
is recorded in “Other” in the “Cash f,mw from financing
in our Consolidated S?ai‘fﬂm(’ﬁ of Cash Flows. As of
the Longview Timber purchase, we did no
fees were expensed in 2013,

activities”

tuse the

i

he debt that we assumed in the acquisition o
in 2013 we issued $500 million of 4,625
ember 15, 2023. The net proceeds
after c%miuumg the discount, underwriting fees and issuance

¢ e $494 mittion. We also entered into a $550 million
7-year senior unsecured term loan credit facility maturing in
September 2020 and borrowed $550 million. Borrowings are at
LIBOR plus a spread or at other interest rates mutually agreed
:n the borrower and the .GM nE b

Iy order to v
Longview Timber
percent notes due Sept

anks,

upon b

O Dot 15, 2013, we repaid the $1,118 millior
i uf the debt that we assumed in the
iew Timber and related fees, expens

isition of

’N’S/
Goer

and pre

using the proceeds from the notes issued and the borrowings
from our term loan credit facility borrowed
»f $25 miilio

in 2013, A pretax
nwas included in our net interest
: irement premiums and other
mmvmﬁ aneous charges in connection with the early
extinguishment of debt. See Note 3. Longview Timber Purchase
in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more
information

expense

DEBY

Our consolidated lmng erm debt wa

+ $4.9 billion as 31, 2013;

« $4.3 billio r 31, 2012; and

» $4.5 billio T 33, 2011,

1,050 million in 2043, Tt

Longterm debt prot
IOt

vt ey
AECIENER AN

1 debt we retd " 1o its scheduled maturity was:

8 million in 2017

) mitlion in 2011,
Losses recognized on early extinguishment of debt and

included in our net interest expense were:

5 mitlion and

313
« $26 million in 2041

5t maturities in the next twelve month

o)

s Debt in the Notes to Consolid:
information.

REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITIES

2013, Weyerhaeuser Company and

te Company (WRECO) entered into a
runsecured revolving credit facility
that expires in Sept 2018, This replaces a $1 billion
revolving credit facility that was set to expire June 2015,
WRECO can borrow up to $50 million under this facility, Neither
of the entities is a guarantor of the borrowing of the other under
this credit facility.

no net the issuance of debt or from
borrowings (repayvments) under our available credit facility in

2013, 2012 or 2011,

There were proceeds from

Debt covenants:
As of December 371, 2013,
WRECO:

Weyerhasuser Company and

d no borrowings outstanding under our credit fa
2 In compliance with the credit facility coveng

Weyerhaeuser Company Covenants:

Key covenants related to Weye
reguirement to maintain:

aeuser Company include the

« a minimum defined net worth of f{»"i% O billion:
» & defined debttototatcapital ratio of 65 percent or less; and

WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY =




v ownarship of, or lor s on, 1o less than four

roitlion acres of tim

b

1 et worth is comprised of

Jompany’ s -defin

waauser shareholders
“vmais‘(w amprehensive in
antd z:::as’ff&i rement bene
Company’s in
segment or other uns

2013, Weyerhaeuser Company had:

» g defined neth
o @ defined debtt

include

er Company o

snt of WRECO,
worth is:

ned nst

swolders” interast,

,{3‘r t vernty

5 investment in

3, WRECO had

& o8

9;»/% mi k for.

financial debt covenants related
i Lines of Creditin the
ements for more

Thsre are no other sig
to our t

third party
; fo Consa

CREDIT RATINGS
L2013, &
oured note

OPTION E

EXERCIBES

iz from

ock options were:

the axers

sk options s primarily due to
price of $29.69, $23.14 and

nectively.

PAYING DIVIDENDS AND REPURCHASING STOCK

We paid cash dividends on commons ¢

‘E ABE million in 2013,
million in 2012

fon in 2000,

and

fr

Be N our g ‘arifer?y dividend from
in F@n{uaw 2041
vidend from 15 cents per share

't "f cents per sn

re in April ﬁf}*?} and
y our quarterly dividend from 20 cents
share in August 2013,

» 8 ie"sc:rea:a 5 per share

to 22 cents per

We paid cash dividends on preference shares of $23 million in
2013,

Our di d on preference shares were!

vidends d

per share in August 2013 and
ser share in October 2013,

14, our Board of Directors declared
rz;i*a*%x pavable on March 14, 2
t the close of business Febru
Ef ard of Directors declared a divid
e on our 6.375 percent Mandatory
s, Series A, payable on April 4,
at the close of busingss

2 33“—3

of record

During 2011, we repurchased 1,199,800 shares of common
stock for $20 million under the 2008 stock repurchase
program. On August 41, 2011 our Board of Directors
terminated the 2008 stock repurchase program and approved
2011 stock repurchase program under which :
se up 10 $250 million of outstanding
. we repurchased 1,089,824 shares of
$17 milljon under ‘;hﬁ 2014 program
, we had remaining authorization of
re share repurchases.

OUR CONTRACTUAL DBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL
COMMITMENTS

More ¢ 5 about our contractual obligations and commercial
commitment in Note 10: Pension and Other

Postretirerment Benefit Plans, Note 15: Long-Term Debt,
Note 17: Legal Proceedings, Commitments and Contir wencies
the Notes to Consofidated

and Note 22: Income Taxes in

Finanocial Statements.




s of Decsmber 34, 2043

Longtemm debt
320 0
38 41
81 * g é |
206 54 43 e
$628 | 8755 1,033 $7,208

of Deecamber 31, ?01 3wl remain in effect until

Off-balance sheet arrangements have not had — and are not
reasonably likely to have — a material effect on our current or
future financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
Note 11: Variable Interest Entities and Note 14: Lines of Credit
in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contain our
disclosures of:

« surety bonds,

+ letters of credit and guarantees and

« information regarding variable interest entities

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS, LEGAL
PROCEEDINGS AND OTHER CONTINGENCIES

See Note 17: Legal Proceedings, Commitments and
Contir rigenc

Statements.

in the Notes to Consolidated Financial

i

ACCOUNTING MATTERS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our critical accounting polic
and estimates. They also have a |

ies involve a higher degree of judgment
high degree of complexity,

In accounting, we base our judgments and estimates on:

« historical experience and
« assumptions we believe are appropriate and reasonable
under current circumstances.

Actusl results, however, may differ from the estimated amounts

we have recorded.

Our most critical accounting policies relate to our:

= pension and posiretirement benefit plans:
« potential impalrments of long-lived assets; and
« legal, environmental and product liability reserves,

e WhET

Details about our other significant accounting policie
we use and how we est © — are in Note 10 Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies in the Notes to Consolida
Financial Statements.,

PENSION AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

We sponsor several pension and postretirement benefit plans
for our employees. Key assumptions we use in accounting
the plans include our:

for

» expected longterm rate of retum,
« discount rates,
» anticipated frends in health care costs,

1 salaries and

At the end of every year, we review our assumplions with
axternal advisers and make adjustments as appropriate. Actual
ence that differs from our assumptions or any changes in
our assumptions could have a significant effect on our financial
position, results of operations and cash flows.

Other factors that affect our accounting for the plans include:

» actual pension fund performance,
fevel of lump sum distributions,

« plan changes

changes in plan participation or coverage and
portfolio changes and restructuring.

=

his section provides more information about our:

s axpectad longterm rate of return and

ets are assels of the pension plan trusts that fund the
benefits provided under the pension plans, The expected long-
term rate of return is our estimate of the longterm rate of
return that our plan assets will eam. Our expected long-term
rate of return is important in determining the net income or
expanse we recognize for our plans.

S
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1inplace, our .S, pension trust letermining the cost of our
ved a 14.8 percent nel r our discount mtw would

Over the 29 years it
investment stral rgy h
CoOMmpound annual re

s $20 million for our .8, gqualified pension pi
+:54 million for our Canadian registered pension plans,

1 achieved LONG-LIVED ASSETS

al return of 100 p

vatue of our iong-live
stances indicate that the
ot be recoverable through fut

Hn

and

srm rate of retum
INCOMe OF exXpBnse wa

> for our

Artimg sours when the carving value of tong-lived
assets will not be recovered from future cash flows and is more
than fair market value. Fair market value is the estimated

approximatety: e i {
approximately amount we would recelve if we were to sell the assets,

s percent decrease in our expe (‘m long-teny

rate of return would inot e or reduce a credit by

In determining falr market value and whether impairment
required to estimate:

opourred, we &

it inereass in our .
1 flows,

expanse

s I‘é‘a?“ assets i any g\ >

income {loss), a

Dlscount Hates

Our discount rates

ts for impairment
whenever events or changes incircumstances indicate that the

sunt of the verable,

: fod, Real Estate In Process of Development and Land Belng
for our Canadian pensi Processed for Development
) December 31, 0
for our Canadian postrety

o with 4.0 percent at Decembe

includes
ned communities (MPCs). MPCs typically inc
s such as residential, active agu
impairment at the subdivision or MPC
torsithat are considered when

nt for

)é{\

our discount rates annuaily and

unt rates are

¥
selectaa ¢

of high-
division or MPC ﬁ}f{}{quA SEEN

g with 1 e Har to *:h

outflows for benef

Pension and postre nt benefit experses for 2044 will be « gross marging and selling costs on homes closed in recent
hased o the 4.9 percent and 4.0 pefcent assumed discount months,
5. plans and 4.7 ¢ tand 4.6 percent assumed « projected gross marging and ing costs based on our

for the wanaoia.z ing budgets;
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T MARKET RISK

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABO!

LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS

t five years and after and

average interest rates for debtmat

falr values of cutstanding obligatior
seivad for the same types and issues of our
same type and comparable issues of debt,

: the fair value of long-term debt ¢
iscounted value of the future ¢
arket ratés of interest affect the falr v

HE-TERM DEBRT OBLIGATIONS AS OF

s interest rate

| Variabieate debt $ - - [ — [ R 3 3 550
A v N/A




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Weyerhaeuser Company:

A

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Weyerhaeuser Company and subsidiaries as of December 31
2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of operations, com @reﬁaeznsxx@ income, cash flows, and changes in
equity for each of the yaars in the threevear period ended December 31, 2013, These consolidated financial statements are the
ity is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial

responsibiiity of the Company’s management, Our responsib

statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial staterments. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
stimates made by management, as well as svaluating the overall finangial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
prov‘d(-z a reasonable basis for our opinion.

I our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Weyerhaeuser Company and subsidiaries as of Decemnber 31, 2043 and 2012, and the results of th
their cash flows for each of the years in the thr ear period ended De 34, 2013, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
Weyerhaeuser Company's-internal control over financ ﬂi reporting as m’ Decamber 31, 2013, based on criteria establi uiii’){j in

Internal Controf — Integrated Framework (19592) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission s’C:OS{}} and our re;:;(;r? dai‘&»d February 18, 2014 expr :d an ungualified opinion on the effectiveness of the
Comparn ! reportin

/8/ KPMG LLP

Seattle, Washington
February 18, 2014

FORM 100 | 5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

o

margin : 1820

| Dperating income s
Interest | : 58
interest expanse, net of ¢ {871

nings from continuing

ence shares

attridable to Weyerh shareholders =

§ 3
o095 5 071 %
; (Note 8 S
' 3985 5 071§ 059
: - 002
ik $ 071l % 081
b 3 .60




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
)D ENDED DECEMBER 34, 2013

Ve {ioss)s
el ear .ﬂgS L $ 53
{los 2os
(B4
ortized net pension - -
27 {
R 1
1,435
[ 1
Total comprehensive income {loss) attributable to Weyerhasuser sharsholders : $ o : - P

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY >



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

2926

Prog on of $6.368 and 56,388 (Note &) 2,704

Construction in progress ) 142
Tienber and tmberiands at cost, te sals (Note 3) 5,580 3,061
3 : 851 695
35 971

245

42,582

384

742

14280

4,851

entities (Note 11)

516

206

516

4049

7,686

CHHVE

Totad Habitities and squity

Noneontrolting intere 37 A3
Tokal equity 6,888 4,143
C84.498 £1.2,692

J

accompanying Notes t

o Financial Statements.

o




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE THREE-YEAR PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2043

DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN MILLIONS

2% !c;f;‘:ditsi‘ 1o inc
1, depletion and amortization B A72
ncome taxes, net {Note 22) o 28)
101
ed compensation axpens 42
for impairment of asseis (N 372
ins on dispositions of assets and a; (58
: -
Receivables less allowances ' ' ' {2731
Receivable for tax o . B o (&)
Inventories ) {13)
Real estate and jand B S e . o
Prepaid expen
nd accrued liabilities ‘ (51}
Deposi boséiioﬁs and othe ‘ o ' o ' o ' o G2
Pension and postret ent contribution {1377 ) 4
Other {22y (4
Nai cash from operations 4.004
Cash fows from invasting activities: :
perty and equig 281
fxrn%:?t—ér'iaf‘»\'is;z refore {32)
(1,581) -
20
22 -
Jther SEBG - 1
Cash from jnvesting activities EEie vl (192) 182
Cash flows from financing activities:
Nat proceeds from issuance of common shares (Note 3) ' 8YY
§ Net procesds from issuance r‘%f ;,Jre.fért-mm ares (Note 3) S REY
Net proceads from issuancé of debt (Note 15) : 400
Cash dividends on common shares {458
Cash dividends on preference shares ' o o ,{23’}
Change in book overdrafts ) 7
Payments on deb (1,567]) o
o 162
Repur : 18} s
Other 34
Cash from financing activities 782
Net change in cash and cash equivalents BB
298
$70835
Cash paid (received) during the year for: -
of smounts capitatized of $21 in $.366 k3
Income t $ 8 k g
Noncash investing and $4.070 $ $

(L) includes gain on tim

{
i
{
i

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

PORT AN
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CONSOLIDATED ﬁ"m"%“ﬁMﬁN? OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Ef 34, 2003

afiares, 8

570

L end of yaar

Other caplial

$oRgd

S BE8)

‘ |
| an our

|

3 i unamortized net g slileres went henetit Note 10}

| Total Weyes hareholders’ iy :

setred

acontrofi

B
T
At
5
2

G
) A
EN A

consolidated Fingneial Statements.

atcomparying Not
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

EOR THE THREE-YEAR PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

on 1o be taxed as a real estate
eport our resulls,

i how we renort our
for various ftems,

results and

DUR ELECTION TO BE TAXED AS A REAL ESTATE
INVESTMENT TRUST (REIT)

Starting with our 2010 1
REIT. We expeot 10 deris
investments in tmberlands,
timber through pay-as-

distributed to shareho du% W
i ly eliminating the dou
: pf‘r‘%icsrz G% our i%mt}eféamﬁ &

cal year, we ad to be taxed as a

5t !s'? our REIT income from

including the sale of standing
REIT income can ba

2y than sianamg ism‘een he
rs following the REIT conv
federal C""Si)f’a?{, income

wae

(w%mz(‘i 4

MOW WE REPORT OUR RESULTS
Qur report includes:

o GONSBONA

« OUr busing ,
‘:;um,m:\; translation,

subsiciar

the priman

pwned domestic and forei
ftes in which we at

- Vi
heneficiary
They do not include our inte

aoeturts, which are emm ina
are presented as a separate compon

b

We account for investments in.and advances to ungonsolidated
equity affiliates us ngf the eqg mv method, with faxes pmv (*d on
undistributed earmings. This mebns that we record eamings and
acorue taxes in the m»md that the earmnings are ?’r’}{?t}?‘{i@( b\; our

olidated equity affili

UnIcons

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
wise, references to “Weyerhaeuser,”
e consolidated company.

g {3& veloping

Our business segments are organized based primarily on
products and *“mv:ceﬂa,

mor 1;5 our bu:; ness segments, Because of this
iy, accounting for cur business segments

» allocating joint
according to usage by our business seg

- conversion and common facility costs
nent product lines

and
» pricing products twmfmmd between our business segments
at current market values,

dividual

harges not related to or aliccated to an i
ment are held in foaiimafed ftem

s

“\s includes

wd msﬁu@ tireme

d with fsnar'mﬂg and the elimination of
1t i inventory and the LIFO reserve,

cies for most of our

§r5ﬁ Cur

the functional cuiren
he U.5. We transiate

« assets and liabilities ~ at the exchange rates in effect as of
pur batance sheet date; and
« revenues and expenses — at average monthly exchange

rgtes throughout the year,




ESTIMATES

We prepare our financial statements am ording to U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (U.8. GAAP). This requires us to
make estimates and assumptions dur ing our reporti ng periods
and at the date of our financial statements. Th imates and
assumptions affect our:

2 o8l

« reported amounts of assets, liabilities and equity;
sclosure of contingent assets and liabilities; and
« reported amounts of revenues and expenses,

While we do our best in preparing these estimates,
results can and do differ from those estimates and
sumplions

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
We use a fair value hierarchy in accounting for certain
nonfinancial assets and labilities including:

ured at fair value for an

=

long-lived assets (asset groups) mes
impairment assessment,
reporting units measured at
goodwill impairment test,
- nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial labili
falr value in the second step of a goodwill

ir value in the first step of

*

ities measured at
impairment

abilities assumed in a bus

qu red and i
s tm, and
« assel retirement

1 syt

obligations initlally measured at falr value

The fair value hierarchy is based on inpuis to valuation
techniques that are used to measure fair value that ¢
observable or unohservable. Chservable inputs reflect
assumptions markét participants would use in pricing an asset
ot liability based on market data obtained from independent
sources while unobservable inputs reflect a reporting entity's
pricing based upon its own market assumptions.

either

The fair value hierarchy consists of the following three levels:

« Level 1 — Inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabifities,

» Level 2 = Inputs are:

- gubted prices for similar assets or liabilities in an active
market;

— guoted prices for identical or simila
markets that are not active; or

-~ inputs other than guoted prices that are observable and
market-corroborated Inputs, which are derived principally
from or corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 — Inputs are derived from valuation techniques in

which one or more significant inputs or value drivers are

unobservable.

it assets or Habilities in

CHANGES IN HOW WE REPORT OUR RESULTS
Changes in how we report our results come from:

» accounting changes made upon our adoption of new
accounting guidance and

« our reclassification of certain balances and results from prior
years to make them consistent with our current reporting,

RECLASSIFICATIONS

\;v have reclass certain balances and results from the
it with our 2013 reporting. Thi
parisons easier. Our reclassifications
ot on net eamings or Weyerhaeuser shareholders’
t. Our reclassifications record our variable interest
’*5% assets and liabilities into thelr respective line tems on
ur Consolidated Balance Sheet. Additionally, our real estate
and forest products asset and liability line items have been
combined into respective total asset and liability line items on
our Consolidated Balance Sheet and in the related footnotes,

HOW WE ACCOUNT FOR VARIOUS ITEMS
This section provides
certain key items rela

information about how we account for
ted to:

» capital iny ﬂem‘@:
» financing our bus

» operations.

es5s and

ITEMS RELATED TO CAPITAL INVESTMENTS

Key item d 1o accounting for capital investments pertain
to property and equipment, timber and timberlands, impairment
of long-ived assets and goodwiil.

s refate

Property and Equipment
We maintain property accounts on an individual asset basis.

Here is how we handle major items:

« Improvements to and replacements of major units of property

Hrs and minor replacemants are expensed.
culated using a straightline method at
b;‘a ed on estimated service lives.
egw ng roads are generally amortized — as timber is

ested - at rates based on the volume of timber
ad to be removed.
sost and accumulated depreciation of property sold or retired
are removed from the accounts and the gain or loss is
inchided in earnings.

i

@

Timber and Timberlands

We carry timber and timberlands at cost less depletion charged
to disposals. Depletion refers to the carrying value of timber
that is harvested, lost as a result of casualty, or sold.

WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY » 20
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Key activities affeetin “tirmber and

timberlands include:

5

Beforestation. Generally, we capitalize initi

g coste as reforestation. We
niable timber classification wi
harvestable. That generally o

¢ the first planting as the
f expected These costs

senafit,

@ {ET
» growth rate revi
« known disposition

and recalibrations and

and ir ible acres.

of timber h
jals and product '* 2
are sold to third parties, we include t

the cost

W inchu

of raw m

rious Canadian provinces t

Y ’{,é":ff mﬁxzéﬁ{;i‘zi FOVEMents;
al periods of 15 1025 ves
y five years provided we mest rafo

nagement guldelines

5y and

y on the timber we harvest

= varies 1
o g tied 1o ;")r‘mﬁum‘ !
» gapends upon the

rasponsibilities ir

wieing and
ion of lard management

impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We review longlived assets ~ including certain identifiable

: for impairment wb@ﬂe\;ér events-or changes in
tances indicate that the carrying amount of the as
be recoverable. impaired assets held for use
to fair value. Impaired assets held for
written down to fair value less cost 1o sell. We determiy

: of comparable assets,
/alue of estimated cash flows from the
tvalues of comparable assets.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the purchase price minus the Tair vatue of net
assets acquired when we buy another entity. We assess
goodwill for impairment:

=

using a fairvalue-based approach and
at least annually — at the beginning of the fourth que

%

In 2013 the fair value of the raporting unit with gootwill

ed its canying value.

FEMS RELATED TO FINANCING OUR BUSINESS
to financing our business include financlal
sh and cash equivalents, accounts payable and

Financial Instruments

fair value of financial instruments where
ssumptions we use — including the discount
o5 of cash flows —— can significantly caffm”r our
fairvalue amm.n*x't&s. Our fair values are estimates and may not
match the amounts we would realize upon sale or settlement of
our financial positions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

L eauivalents are investments with original maturitie
te cash equivalents at cost, which

r major bank acce
ve issued are prese;’ued fer payment. As @

2 in thase ﬁega‘?ive t:a“a bu ances are
r@pmrtead as financing activities in our Consolidated Statement of
cash Flows. Negative book cagh balances were:

‘%22:»‘ miltion at December 31, 2013, and
v at December 31, 2012,




WAL WS04 € < = ANVAROD YISOIVHEAAIM

"BALORUY
40U SUOIENIS Ul ASURIDSX
2} &q DRIBAQD drm'&

aje syuedpiped ueid ay
a1 Burliewas afeisar oy Jo suryd ¢
aemugd, g BN mw 8l ;0 poLad 808

EIIE!
polelemaIetl o LiQ_lE?;QO 4,;@1:9;4
wg 10 ansed QT J0 ss80xe Ul Aljleisusd
7 jeUenoe jau pa uéoﬁsu a/!g%. FSHITIEa

waie ueld pue $1S00 20ASS Joud JO UDIBZIHOL
HURLING DUE SjUsUiomas ueid uo s9S80] 4o sUl
TGIDESE DUN} U0 LUNLaL K

'suonefigo aul 10 1500 Ui
Buunp patopual
sa0iMes | 5oalojdwe 10f 9BUBYOXS Ul PAPIAIL SIIAUSY JO 1800

Ueahk ayy

=

SBEPN U

1800 Jyeusy oipoued 1eu By L "eziuBooas am 1800 JudUaY
atpoued Jeu-aul pue suoRedigo Wauey JewaInansod Jayd
ple-tosuad aUL 10 JUNOWE Y} SUIULSIeD SUCHEBIIEA [ELRNIOY

glaieils] ‘5{356;3%,35“\ O Bl uoly

Ul {95’5&};‘» AWooUl ansuaysldulod zs‘;‘é%m:},u;g S

SUB[] HIOUST JUDLIDIIBIISO JOYI0 PUB UGISUDY

HORESUSdU0D |

10 IN0gE UONBULIOIUL 840 sapiaid Uk
Feaeys 1T ajon Tpouad 8oies palinbal g oekoiue
OB J8AQ SUOIRIBCE) JO JSWEIEIS DEIBPHOSUO N0
Ul SPIBME DasSRE-SIBYS JO 1500 BUY aZiuF0oal uall op "sesodind
UUNOO0R Jo) SPIEME DRSEG-BIRUS SUY JO 1500 aUl USIqrISa
SIL@RINSRIL B8aU | "pallipowt Jo patued aie Aoyl sajep o
HO SPIBME DASBC-BIBUS JO anjeA ey oyl ainsest Ajeisusd o

-BIRYS 4

igexe) 0} Aidde 0} paloadxa se
PUE DaAO

DBI10SYE 10 SBSRY X DUR SuNowe

LIBO BU UOBMIDU SBOUBIBLUD S} VUM SUILLIDISD -«

BTSSRI PUE 319588 XB] PO

SPIBMIOIALIED JIDOJID XEY DUE §S0; Bul
PUE SLWaY U18L80
2¢ xe) eyl pue sasodind [BIoURULY 0] SUNOWE Buidies

DL} UDBMIB( SOOUBIBHIP 0) 8NP SBTUANDASUOD XY BINyny «

0Blad 01 SBIGRI PUB S19SSE XE) PBLSIOD BZIUB00BI 8

HPALD JO UORBAUSIU0D B JUSSDIAS) 18] SIOWms

JO WBUOdWOD B s paziug SHjeURq Xe) mﬂu"‘wcmm
01 pejelas saneued pur J1saie paniooe ‘Aogod Bununoooe

& AUBCLLIOD BUT UM BOUBDIOIDE Ul "PauIR)s

SLINIEL ey papy Alsnonald uo uavey sey Aueduwon ¢
X&) uiepaoun i

aining ipnueiod wes

Aulael pue 19888 o gayun SaXe) SUIOOU! 10} 1UNG

BUOREIBA) JO WBLULIRIS PRIBDIOSUOD ING Ul IO
10 $1800 Ay Ul 81500 Sunpuey pue Suiddius
s1500 Susipuey pue Suddyg

EReN

LIOWSAUL U1901 ({2 pue sauolueal Aiddns
PUE [RLBLEL 88 [Jom SB SL01UaAUl onpold pue [eue1ew
MEL DNERUIOD A0 JO 80URIEY Byl 0} saydde spoyisur 1800
adetone Bunow JO (44 BUL "SPOLIOW 9SOUL J8pUN DaNUIUoD
SABL JEL) SPOLIaW 1800 9FRI0AR FUIAOW JO ~ DOLIBLU TNO-ISHY
URISH QLY Ol DU J8pUN S10Npoid May pappe sainue Jo
suomsmbor wanbas cm pawé};@ DOUIBW XY Ul UM ULIOU0D
0} p,e:-z; nhar s SO JOL POYIAW

wiop "g” ﬂ ANO 8 Pl

SOLOWIOAL &

MUBonas 1oid puE BIBS 10 BUBLLIC IR0 e -
ayl 0} PaLBISURI] U89 arry uogs&;‘;ss;'w DUE BN «

ARl LION

DR IRANg

‘paAlE0Rl UBsd aABY SIUSLARY UMOP palinbl «
PEIA] { {

‘PALNAcO aARY SBUISO »

UBLM

anuans) oZIUB00a) oM 'SOIBS PURLBGUIN PUB 91R1S8 |28 JO4

wod ugiesop ey e
St ANUSASL ‘SBJES HodXs BB
ziudooal Ajjess

HIATOGL

1 uslidiys uodn anuaass o

‘531800 Buypuey pue Budiys ¢
phjou suoneiado o1 paleas su

SNOILVHILO OL g3LV138 SaLl

TANURIEG BIOEAIBOSS SIUN0SOE N0 JO usaied HT Ajoleuwnxoidde
10} PALUNOOOE JBWIOLEND BUO ‘CTOF ‘T8 1OqUIaos( 0 8y Msu
NO BSOIOSID BAN

S} 4O UORBIURILOY



Panston plans. We have pensjon plans covering most c)f our Envirommental Remediation
employees. Determination of benefits differs for salaried, hourly  we acerue losses a%oc‘iat@d with environmental remediation
and union employees: abligations when such losses are probable and reasonably

2. Future @xr«mdst ures for environmental remediation
counted to their present value.
wmental remediation costs from other
2 s assets whern the recove *x,n is deemed
amount of iosses previously

rz"sme‘f'r’ziy farni gs for five cons
10 years hefore relirement.
d union emploves benefils
; for each year of service.

mployee henefils are sel through «

d does not excesd the

OTE 2: BUSINESS SEGMENTS
s and how we account for those
d in Note :i: Summafy of S;‘gmﬁr it

M

sn plans — according to the Employee Retirement bhusiness segment,

G74; and

- according to the applicable DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

ax Act. We have disposed of various businesses and operations that
dre excluded from the segment results below. See Note 5

o Operations for information regarding our

and the segments affected.

income Security Act of
» Canadian pension pl
provincial pension act

the income

’}“ﬂ,m

nt health ¢
A syritinued operations

plovees. in some ¢
> nne?z‘i Note 10: Pen

yent Benefit Plans provides at
Wes mate in our postretirement

§

KEY FINANCIAL DATA BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

nation

s
o7
B




Management evaluates segment performance based on the contributions 1o earnings of the respective segments. An analysis
and reconciliation of our business segment information to the consolidated financial statements follows:

=
w5,

s to Mot Earnings Attributable to Weyerhaeuser

Reconciliation of Contribution to Eami

wribution

Net contribut ations S . 20
861

scontinued ope

Wiy
soiation,
e

trement cost

b ¢ o $ 18 % 5 $ 40 5
$ $ $ $ 4 $ 29 &
% / o2z $ $ 4 E RS %

. closures and impalmments® .

- : $ $ 43 G b8 any S%oaBlL 8 o0
$ $ & % - % 8 %o 18 $
$ $ B4 $ ;) Bood4 ¥ 4 $

Equity In income (1o i thiliates and unconsolidated entities

2013 e
2 $ 2 )

2001

Capital expenditures

5 {4 B

pos

285

e
fx
=
i
i85

4 % 4]

24
A5
&

5

%
¢

iates and unco

{

Gy 1S
iy
i
3
¥
=
B
o

i
Py
&

o
s
A
oy
e
R
[
“

- Total as

2012 &7 B8 $19i6
$2,003
$4,694 $1,917

termination benef;
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NOTE 3 LONGVIEW TIMBER PURCHASE In order to finante our purchase of Longy

the following:

aw Thmber, we issued

nt of the equity
firmiber) for

29 million commo
GrShare fm’ net procesds G? $ b“
af uly 8
sve for net proceeds of ?1&6 m%?!%c gl
ercise of an overalioiment ¢
375 percent Mandatory Cot
Series A, par vaiue $1.00 and |
her share on June 24, 2013, for net

%

$27 /‘“

Sd. B8 bion umh at u:ﬁ s:zs:uf‘r*ed t}w *‘ oy
e Burchase price af $"3 65 b! o

:ﬁ‘}

£ us with option:
ies from this busi
ds sagment be

racorded in
Hidgted %’zzié‘f?yé} Sheet.

Saven 4 Unaudited Pro Forma Information that Pr “Other capi in ou 1
Combined Arvounts gy 1 tis Aogul T Proceeds were uded to finance the acquisition and pay related
m’@?ﬁ”m ’ “m ‘ faes and expenses. We paid $11 n who‘ﬁ in 1@3*«* related to a
OLINTS I MILLION : . bridge loan in 2013. As of the ¢lose of the Longview Timber
purchase, we did not use the loan and these fees were

din 2013, which is recorded in “interest expe

slidated Statement of Operations.

financing in 2043
ssumed debt in 2013, See N

MNOTE 4: REAL ESTATE DIVESTITURE

nounced that our Board of Direc
f strategic alternatives with respe
e Company (WRECO)
e development business

wded to consider a broad range of
nmm *o {‘;omz' wirsg to operate

TOrs

TRI Pointe Ho
ent

WREC

Clocated r‘\ev* hofla
b During Tourth «
impairment charge
5 Property, which is excluded from
i Pointe Horr
result of man Toining that our str
development will differ from the prior developit
information about this asset iy :
e .J‘rucrz‘f,,:r‘fz‘sg, Closure

Jne., as a
tegy for

t plan, More
found in

1wl Asset

information :}&:}tv »
acquired and liabiliti
pircumstances existir

ca

B




We expect the transaction to close in second guarter 2014,

NOTE 5: DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
perations classified as
201’% of December 31

zi}c,a,emser 31, 2041 inch

stwood Shipping Lines operall
i quarter 2011,

discontin
012

. Discontiy

our hardwoods and

nof oh were sold

i thin

OPERATIONS INCLUDED IN DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

ardwoods

|
|
| Westwood
DA N
zéahxm.)mgg Lines
!

Sale of Hardwoods

. m’ which $25 million was a note r
i quarter 2011, we reduced
r fair vaiue less selling costs whi
ition of & $9 million charge. An a

i curtailment charge was recognized in thirg

ddditional §

vhen the transaction closed. Total pretax ¢ the
522 million were recorded in our Wood Products
. We recognized a tax benefit on the sale of $8 million,

resuiting in a yearto-date net loss of $14 million.

The following operating assets were included as part of the
transaction:

acity of

o seven primary hardwood mills with & total cs
300 million board feet,

« four concentration yards,

« three remanufacturing plants,

& log merchandising yard and
; s in the U.S., Canada, Japan

va and Hong

Sale of Westwood Shipping Lines

*w» 30, 2014, we completad 1
MwesCo of Japan for $58 million in
tax gain of $49 milion in Unallocated ltem

and recorded tax expense of $18 million, resulting in a net gg]z:t}z?i:
of $34 million. This transaction also reduced our operating
lease obligations by ammxa‘rm;a ely $130 million,

the

u’}
k4
=

cas

fion

NET EARNINGS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Halew

nes 18H0
iscontinued operations 540
Loss from operat
é%z,#ti%iﬁ/{_w’;f;i»> $ (3

od Ship

Total

“Qu 3 M\m discontinued op

froomes taxes

| Net foss from operations {11

Net gain (loss) on sale {after-tax):

Hardwoods |

sis m;a? have %\eesﬂ anouam} to and
C s'(r‘iii)i.il an o earmings for the operating segr

corporate ©
uded int

incl

Other discontin a;f;zd operations
ve divesied in

relate 1o gains or loss

prior years and are incluc

S. Qms ng 2011 we increased our reserve for
wironmental remeadiation costs and

1 514 million charge associated with

discontinued

operations.

NOTE 6: NET EARNINGS PER SHARE

Our basic earnings per share attributabl
common shareholders for the last th*‘e @ Yer

o We yesr%"z apuser

PPN
2013,

st gamings per share attributable to Weyerhas
1 shareholders for the last three years were:

This note dis

» how we calculate basic and difuted net earnings per share
and

» shares excluded from ditutive effect.

WEVERHAEUSER COMPANY » 2



HOW WE CALCULATE BASIC AND DILUTED NET We issued 13.8 million 8.375 percent Mandatory Convertible

EARNINGS PER SHARE Preference Shares, Series A on June 24, 2013, We do not
ine iucw hese shares in our calculation of diluted earnings per
hey are antidilutive. See Note 3 Longvi

e e sommon
1 L%?%’??(Bx*&éi’ ofour

‘Basic eamings” pershare is neteamir
shareholders divided by the weighted aven

Coomimon shares, including sto
no circuistance under which

20865

wir outstanding difutive potential comir
NOTE 7. INVENTORIES

al common shares may include: Inventories ihclude raw materials, work-in-process and finished

goods.,

» putstanding stock options,
tricted stock units,
. pmfwrmr(c:e share uni

levsntories as of the End of Oub Last Two Years

W use the treasury stock method o
¢ stock oplions, restricted
g units, Share-based pa

S8 i;éh% upon the achisvement
or market conditions are inch
ner share calculation in the period
satisfied.

e effect of our

orage cost

L nappl i-conve:

raion is nf}t assumed for pu &5 of computing 28
Hiuted i gs&: per share if the effect wou 3 be antidifutive. (. plywood, panels and 66 |
Preference shar : ve whenever the amount of the red humbe
dividlend declared in of accumt d for the current period per | Pulp and paperboard 19
common share oblainable on conversion exceeds diluted Other products : 87
earnings per share exclusive of the preference shares. als and supplies ' o e 139
sference shares are evaluated Tor parlicipation on a gu / sBay

5 to determine whether two-cla
ares gre considered 1o be
reporting period end to the exte
in dividends paid to common
hares are not consl
ber 34, E%i‘? Unde
pasic and dilu
ar %mir *sfefemﬂm an shareh

or all inveritories, our stated inventories would
112 million as of both December
3 3, 2012

- two- HOW WE ACCOUNT FOR OUR INVENTORIES

are %“ﬁi';i,éﬁ{‘?i be

an of Note 1: Summary of Significant
s detalls about how we account for

SHARES EXCLUDED FROM DILUTIVE EFFECT

The following shares were not included in the computation of
difuted parnings pe e because they were efther antidilutive NOTE 8: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

ar the reguir fmd performance or market conditions weré not met, Property and equipment includes fand, buildings and
these shares may be dilutive potential common improvements, machinery and equipment, roads and other

sy all o
in future periods.




Carrving Value of Property and Equipment and Estimated
Service Lives

Following is @ list of our equity affiliates as of December 31, 2013

mmnm Amm K)m M»aeﬁ ¢ Affitiates

Property and
i sment, at
N/A Researching and des I@psrg
Fachinology for converting i‘;ﬂ!m;ﬁke
5-40 .
2-95
As of Dece our Real Estate segment held )
10-20 investments in five r te partnerships and fimited liability
Other 310 companies. Qur participation in these entities may be as a
fotal cost developer, a builder or an investment partner. Our ownership
Allowance "f"’;:‘m percer %rgé,,@ varies from 7 percent to 50 percent depending on
the investment.
Property and $ 2,872 e e o IR, AP,
equipment, net During 2013, we sold part of our investment in Liaison
Technologies Ine. and recognized an $10 million pretax gain,
which is recorded in “Interest income and other” in our
SERVICE LIVES AND DEPRECIATION Consolidated Statement of Qperations. Our remaining
Buildings and improvements for property and @L;uig:went have  investmentis accounted for under the cost method.

estimated lives that are generally at elther the high end or low

end of the range from & years to 40 years, mm»ﬁ ¢ on the Unconsolidated Financial Information of Equity Affiliates
ne an S OIS o~ s iotinn
type and performance of construction. sated assets, liabilities and operating results of the

5 that we accounted for as equity affiliates are provid

The maximum service lives for machinery and equipr
among our operations:

« Heal Esta

« Timberlar 15 years;

« Wood products mamfaf;‘ru:v’ s facilities — 20 years; and
» Primary pulp mills ~ 25 vears,

of Equity Affiliates

Depreciation expense, excluding discontinued operations, was:

o $346 million in 2013,
» $344 million in 2012 and
o $2374 million in 2011

NOTE 9: EQUITY AFFILIATES y Affiliates

We have investments in unconsolidated equity affill

which we have significant influence that we sccount Tor using
he f\qmw method with taxes provided on undistributed

earnings. We record earnings and accrue taxes in the period
that the earnings are recorded by the affiliates.

ates over

g
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Dolng Business with Affiliates
Doing business with our affiliates va
affillate. We:

e cash for NORPAC u

ar holds the

naer ¢
srords @

e (i in accounts

s Bheet, We

o 135’3 and

mmbiv tm A0
payable in me,\ ACCOMpPar
had the following payable be

WInNg

i at December 31, 2(
Hon at December 31

NOTE 10: PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT
BENEFIT PLANS

several ret

mant programs

rovidas dilalls about:

5 We SpOnsoT,
ions and events aff

A { aEPONEnT,
pENSion asse

aotivity of plans w
actuarial assumptions

%

At

B

=

TYPES OF PLANS WE SPONSOR

The 5 we sponsoer in the LS. and C
to € country’s requirements,

ertheint

aiact employe
iified undsr tt

sred under the income Tax
jal pension acts; s‘mcj

fect emplovees that provide
not be reg red under the

« riagis
Aot and applic
o FIONIE ,g;gwm:»rw

We atso offer retires medical and life insurance plans in the
UG, and Canada. These plans dre referred to as other
postretirement benefit plans in the following disclosures.

Employes Eligibility and Aecamﬁng

, 8%

fthe ;:»ians and E}ene—,iis. See
{ Events” below for changes o

and other postretirement be

We rmess {
and pther postretirement beg
our fiscat vear. The fair value of pe
estimated at the end of the year and

n plan assets and pension

ations as of the end of

assels are

e revised in the first half
on needed to finalize

of the following vear when the informatio
irva ved. There were no signific s that

urement

n 2013, 2012

nrovided in this note is af

o events

Amendments of Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit
Plans for Salarled Employees
Pension Benefit Plan Amendments

uring fourth quarter 2013, we ratified an amendment to the
Weyerhaeuser Pensjon Plan that of the plan to newly hired
and rehired salaried or non union effective
January 1. 2014, Beginning January 1,2014, new hires will
recelve & company contribution for retirement in thelr 401(k)
was announcéd in Decen

oy

S5y

amplo

Nor-Union

> an for 5\5@ on ioyees of
y i,ké;'ﬂitef;% at Grand ?raifie. Alb

g that (1) closes these ¢ 58
14 and {23 char
yees anrolled in th

f service begin
participants in

ring January 1,

arnounced 10 p

During 2012 we ratified ame
Pension Mcm for various (mff:‘(.
chang
$12 m

ion




During fourth quarter 2014, we ratified an amendment to the FUNDED STATUS OF PLANS WE SPONSOR

Weyarhasuser Pension B
Enhancement for active employees ef
change sed the Plan’s projected benefit o
$16 miltion. This change was announced to af
participants in January 2012

an that eliminated the Retiree Medical  The funded status of the plans we sponsor is determined by
ctive July 1, 2012. This  somparing the projected benefit obligation with the fair value of
) : plan assets at the end of the vear.

ir Pension and

Postretirement Medical and Life Insurance Benefit Plan

Amendments

fourth quarter 2043, the decision was ratifi
pany funding of the Post-Medicare
it Acoount (HRA) for certain salaried
dina $70 million redu {;mm in the Company’
ity as of December 31, 2013,
icated to affected retirees durmg _iaz'n,;esny, 2014.

siiminate Com

fit obligation

WAS COmmun

. Int 15
During fourth guarter 2011, we ratified amendments to our o .
Plan participants’ 18
postretifement mmma! am* life insurance benefit plans for .S, pariets
salaried employees that re ’;Iuced or eliminated certain medical | (666) 708 b 0
and life insurance benefils that were available to hoth past and

(o8) 22 (5)) 2

Dre it employees. The changes included the elimination of
the Prf Medicare Plan Il company subsidy for those not enrolied
Fluly 4, 2012, and eliminated the Post-Medicare H :
sement Account for those not enrolled o
cifenrolied, as of July 4, 2012, Thes
niflion reduction in the company’'s p
of December 31, 2011, These changes we
announced to affected participant ry 2012

»f Plas Assels

Ja

Restructuring Activities

is provided in this note is affected by
COMPany ructuring activities that occurred in 2011, There
were no rcwmmm‘ g activities in 2013 or 2012 that affected
the information provided in this note.

: mmw(#\

for final fair value

2011 Restructuring

return o

rtallments and special termination benefits are
¢ 1o involuntary terminations due to company-wi
wturing activities, and the sale of our hardwooils
twood Shipping Lines cseratsons. The total curt
8. pension plans was $9 mi
$3 million settlement charge for a Ca
pension plan in fourth quarter 2011, There were no curtall

RN

Hion. In ”d(i“m we

es or credits to the U.S. or Canadian postretirement
! sion plan in
for those terminated employees who were not yet
@,hg ible to retire but whose age plus service was at least 65
: of service (Rule of 65). Special
»»,tmh charges were $6 million.
WEYERNABUSER COMPANY » 20 89



Funded Status of Dur Pension and Olher Postrétiviment Accumulated Benefit Omigaﬁans Greater Than Plan Assels
Benefit Plans : As of December 31, 2013, pw~ fn plans with accumulated
: penefit obligations greater than plan assets had:

mitlion in projected benefit obligations,
3 wéu;m in accumulated benefit obligations and
th & falr value of $726 milli

2042, pension plans with accumulated
ater than plan assets had:

Nosourrent habilitieg

» $6 in projected henefit obligations,
o B in acoumulated benefit obligations and
» BES ir value of $5 billion.

The accumulated benefit obligation for all of our defined benefit

pension plans w

which w«m a positive
plans as of the end of 20
3,70 parsent at the end
2043 for the U5, ¢
{) percent at the
3 for the C

e funded utzaiua of thv pension
discount rates increased from
4.90 percent at the end of
it m‘im ineres ;wm:f from

» $5.7 billion at December 31, 2013, and
» $6.4 billon at December 31, 2012,

PENSION ASSETS
Our Investment Policies and Strategies

2ot how we

arit policies and strategies guide and dire
s for the benefit plans we sponsor. These funds

- funds our U.S. qualifiad pension plans:
onded ;ﬁans we pay W; rust — funds our Canadian registerad

assals as they come due.

nsation Arrangements —- fund a portion of
snadian nonregistered pension plans.

o our pension plan assets at the end of
ﬁma&a& Additi 1;:@;‘;1 information

rend values generally becomes available 1o Us 1.8, and Canadian Pension Trusts
during ihe first % aif-of the following vear. We increased the falr
value of plan assets by $55 million to reflect final valustions as
of December 31, 2012

Our U5, pension trust holds the funds for our U.8. qualified
pension plw\ms»s, white our Canadian pension trust holds the
funds for our Canadian registered pension plans.

Our strategy within the trusts is 1o invest

pansion ;mmu and « directly in a diversified mix of nontraditional investments; and
o » indirectly through derivatives to promote effective of

ndmanage associated risk.

returms a

lity on our Consolidated
3“%{:’: funded status of the plans
inceme or expense that we have
se differences are actu
costs and credits that are ©
i periodic benefit costs

d amounts are recorded ir
, which is a component of total equity on « cash and shortterm investments,
et The Cumulative Other « hedge funds,

jon of Note 18: « private equity,

in the amounts inchuded » real estate fund investments and
isive income (108s) by corporient,  « commaon and preferred stocks.

- practice and in accordance with
sstablished by the company's
the investment managers of the
asset portfolios utilize a diversifi

investments include:

&

Comprehensive
our Consolidated :

Cornprehensive mm T
Sharehioldar's interest ditails

i cumulative other comprehg

gl
“E
Py




Our indirect investments include:
» equity index derivatives,

« fixed income derivatives and

s swaps and other

1y

The overall return for cur pension trusts includes:

« retums earned on our direct investments and

s gamed on the derivatives we use,

Cash and shoridterm investments generally consist of hig

liquid money market and government securities and are

held to fund benefit payments, capital calls and
Jirements,

primatily
rargin regu
generally consist of privately-offered
limited liability entities
iabil ty

Hedge fund investment
managed pools !“r‘irnar':\f structured as |
with the general members or partners of such limited |
entities serving as portfolio manager and thus being
responsible for the fund's underlying investment dacisions
Generally, these funds have varying degrees of liguidity and
redemption provisions. Underlying investments within these
funds may include long and short public and pnvatu aguities,
corporate, mortgage and sovereign debt, options, swaps,
forwards and other derivative positions. These funds may also
use varying degrees of leverage.

Private equity investments consist of investments in private
souity, mezzanine, distressed, codnvestments and oth
structures. Private equity funds generally participale in
and venture capital of imited lability entities through
equity and debt instruments. These funds may also employ
borrowing at the underlying entity level. Mezzanine and
distressed funds generally follow strategies of investing in the
debt of public or private companies with additional participation
through warrants or other equity type options.

n buyouls
uniisted

Real estate fund investments in real property may be initiated
through private transactions between principals or public
market vehicles such as real estate investment trusts and are
generally held in limited liability entities

Common and preferred stocks are equily instruments that
generally have resulted from transactions related to private
aquity investment holdings.

Swaps and other derivative instruments generally are
comprised of swaps, futures, forwards or options. In
ateordance with our investment risk and retum objectives,
some of these instruments are utilized to achieve target equity
and bond asset exposure or to reduce exposure o certain
market r
The resu iz ing asset mix achieved is intended to allow the
assets 10 perform comparably with established benchmarks.
Others, mainly total return swaps with limited exchange of
principal, are designed to gain exposure 1o the return
characteristics of specific financial strategi

Ui

sks or to help manage the Hguldity of our investments,
£ 4 )

Al swap, forward and option contracts are executed in a
diversified manner through a number of financial institutions
and In accordance with our investment guidelines.

Retirement Compensation Arrangements

Retirement Compensation /
sistered pensio

Arrarigerments fund a portion of ¢

Canadian nonr on plans.,

Under Ret tion Arrangemenis, our

contributions

s B0 percent to sstments in a portfolio of equities;
50 pere terest-bearing refundable tax account

id by th@ Canada Revenue Agency — as required by

an tax rules.

The Canadian tax rules requirement means that — on average,
over time ~ approxirnately 50 percent of our Canadian
nonregistered pension plang’ assets do not eam retums,

Managing Risk

Investments and contracts, in general, are subject
includ Hquidity, currency, interest

o risk,

and

:mg market price,

credit risk \/‘w have established governance practices 1o
manage certain risks. The following provides an overview of

these risks and describes actions we take to mitigate the
potential adverse affects of these risks on the performance
Generally, we manage these risks

our pension plan assets.

throught

ication of managers and stralegies,

ty vehicles,

selection and dive
uge of limited-liabili
- diversification and
constraining risk profiles to predefined limits on the
percentage of pension trust assets that can be invested in
certain categories.

5

=

:t»

Market price risk is the risk that the future value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in its market
price, whether caused by factors specific to the individual
investment, its issuer, or any other market factor that may

ffact its price. We attempt to mitigate market price risk on the
company’s m nsion plan assetl portfolios by investing in
diversified set of assets whose returms exhibit low correlation
1o those of traditional asset classes and each other. |
addition, we and our investment advisers monitor the
investments on a regular basis to ensure the decision 1o invest
in particular assels continues to be suitable, including
performing ongoing gualitative and guantitative assessments
and comprehensive in v&gmseﬁ’z and operational due diligence.
Special attention is paid to organizational changes made by the
underlying fund managers and to changes in policy relative to
their investment ohjectives, valuation, hedging strategy, degree
of diversification, leverage, alignment of fund principles and
investors, risk governance and costs.
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Liguldity risle is the risk that
difficulty in maeting obl
Habilities r financial ebligatio

nsigt of distributior

e pension trusts will encounter
ciated with thelr financia

s no active sec 0}”233}
may be Higl
J"zmb that may affect the
5. ?’s‘;va‘ii}:’

s ;f%ﬁfsav >
ity risk ¢
:éc:ig fund po
s and fun

S years *ami wtmtu,‘ 18,

"
e

Gurrency rsk avises from holding pensi
1 in a currency other than th
sttled. Such risk is
weis designed to hedge

| currencies,

ive fumz mmag;@s*‘ss
seisions and

2]

which failures by
dong could reduce the

WY @t d

Crodit risk relates to the extant 1t
counterparties 1o di 5(‘%‘@@@3 theiroblig
of future cash flows on he

sion plan assels. I evaluatin
et upon information pro
r or a rating agenay, which may &
sosure o credit fsk by only ¢
| counterparties, and ag of
g eich had a credit rating of at least A

» diversification of count
« predefined settlem
s docurnented agre

5 cash flows

We expact that none of our counterparties will fail to meet its
obligations. Also, no principal is at g result of these
type—zﬁa of investmen z-» Only the amount of unsettled net

sk as

struck by the and?;,v.

diligence process, which foc
ment fund 1o ensure the decision o
in exposure 1o & fund continues 1o
T asaet portfolios.

Nt

toring e

¢ direct investment or d
ished guidelines on
1 be investad in certain

tion by investiment type fund
as well as to manage overall

hquzc M;y.

.

Assets within our gualified and
UB. and Canadian pension trusts were invested ¢

fans in our
follows:

s within our
ge were mw: sted a

Asse

Erjuities
(e

el o
ara o

.ransectéea between me
&, We do not value pe

ce‘d or distressed sale scenaric

servable and unobservable inputs

4
i

s when

apphied by market participa
el or liability i an orderly

arket of that asset or lability.
We value the pension plan assels based upon the observability
of exit pricing inputs and classify pension plan assets based
upon the fowest level input thatiis significant to the fair value




megsurement of the pension plan assets in their entirety. The
fair value hierarchy we follow is outlined below;

Level 1. Inputs are unadjusted uuotﬂd prices for identical
liabilities traded in an acti ket.
in nor-active markets

assels and

Level 2: Inputs are quoted prices for
which pricing inputs are observable either directly or indirectly

at the reporting date.
3: Inputs are derived from valuation
sromore significant inputs or value driv

one
unobs

The pensiorn

n assets are comprised of cash and short-
invest lerivative contracts, common and prefe
fund units, The fund units are typically w“s;*&ad H
5 in hedde funds, private equity funds, re tate funds
s, Fach of these assets participates m it*:‘; own
arket,

term

ment

and
interes
and cash funds
unigue. principal m

Cash and short-term investments, when held directly, are

valued at cost.

Common and preferred stocks are valued at exit pr

in the public markets.

tive contracts held by our pension trusts are not publicly
=ach derivative contract is
unigue financial counterparty and refe
units or a unique number of synthe
sublicly reported market index. The derivative conty
vaiuer sed upon valuation statements received

financial counterparties.

specifica 3%;

Fund units are valued based upon the 1 :
funds which we believe represent the ;}6‘:?’»;):‘3;{ prices at which
new investors are permitted to invest and the prices at which
existing investors are permitted to exit. To the degree net asset
values as of the end of the year have not been received, we
use the most recently reported net asset values and adjust for
market events and cash flows that have occurred bs:*twm the
date and the end of the year to esti values
end of the vear.

interim

as of the

ot have readily available guoted prices in an

{ reguire a higher degree of judgment ts} vaiue and
have ég?‘zts;‘ degree of risk that the value

realized upon sale as of the valuation date could be dif
from the reported value than assets with observable pric
i s. 1t is possible that the full extent uf harket price,

sidity, currency, interest rate, or credit risks may not be fully
tored into the fair values of our pension p%zz:ﬂ assels that
whservable inputs. Approximately $4.9 bil
\‘»/ 9 percent, of our pension phn assets were gl fied as
Level 3 assets as of December 31, 2013,

cing,

Hon

r value of pension plan assets based upon
-end reporting process.

We estimate the fal
the information available during the yee

In some cases, primarily private equity funds, the information
available consists of net asset values as of an interim date,
cash flows between the interim date and the end of the vear,
and market everits. When the difference is significant, we
revise the yearend estimated fair value of pension plan assets
rporate yearend net asset values received after we have
report on Form 10-K. We increased the fair
assets in the second cuarter of 2013 by
or 1.1 percent.

toine

filed our annual
value of pension

3,

HHE milii

sets, when categorized
archy are as fa%!cwg;

dance

raments

Hadge funds {7} 3,
Private squity and related (2} 1,606
funds
Real estate and related 101
funds
Common ar 23 29

$580 $88 %

$ 8 $omn $

I3 —
$ 14 § &
Total plan assets Soela

Pension trust m\/mtme

Fixed Ingome instiuments $476
Hedge funds
17

$493 3

Investments &

a § 14 G| S g
plan assets
Total plan assets S0
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3l amount of the

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the This table shows the aggregate noti

pension plam sats 1 fair value using derivatives held by our pensionitrusts — which fund our
Lo m‘vam nputs (Level 3):18 presented balow: gualified and registered plans < at the end of the last two

ACTIVITY OF PLANS WE SPONSOR
Benefit Cost (Cr 4\@%&‘*

Mot Periodic

we the fair vatue of the derivativ
- which fund our qualified and registered
the last two vears,

terming
trenefits d
closures




Estimated Amortization from Cumulative Other Comprehensive
Loss in 2044

Amortization of the net actuarial loss and prior service cost
{eredit) of our pension and DOSU@TH‘PH“&%‘M beneafit plang will

affect our other comprehensive income in 2014, The net eff
of the estimatad amortization will be an increase |
fit costs or a decrease in net periodic benefi

ot

be

2014,

Expected Penslon Funding

Established funding standards govern the funding requirements

for our gqualified and registered pension plans, We fund the

benefit payments of our nongqualified and nonregistered plans
s benefit payments come due.

o on estimated yearend gsset values and
n liabilities, we expect t

uring 2014,
projections of p

base

to contribute approximately $53 million for our
Canadian registered plan;

» pe contribute or make benafit
Canadian nonregistered plans of $3 million; and

« make benefit payments of approximately ‘%)i} million for our
U.5. nongualified pension plans.

+ e regui

equired 1o mvms s for our

We do not anticipate a contribution being required for our U5
alified pension plan for 2014,

Expected Postretirement Benefit Funding

Our retiree medical and life insurance plans are unfunded.
Benefits for these plans are paid from our general
they come due. We expect to make b i
mittion 1.S. and Canadian oth

for our U.S.
plans in 2014, including $9 million ex
b g

sgets as

¢ ;;>m:t:@ﬁtéf§az‘ﬁ@z
pected to

1

b@mfﬂ

be required to

cover benefil payments under collectively bargained contractual
obligations.

Estimated me,m@f Benefit Mwmm% for the Next 410 Years

2018 5

20192023

$3,824

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

We use actuarial assumptions to estimate our benefit
obligations and our net periodic benefit costs.

Rates We Use in Estimating Our Benefit Obligations

We use assumptions to estimate our benefit obligations that
include:

nthe U.8

es in
O va iuz:‘ ump

« discount r

ra S, and
rates used {

{ Canada, including discount
sum distributions;

2G Of olalit] pmmmn increasas for our salaried and hourly
5. and Canada; and

sible retirees who will ¢

elect lump
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IHsoount Rates and §
Obligation

fpensation Inereass Used in Buthmating Our Pension and Othe

]

1 nohquak

N/A

N/ A

rimnating Our Net Periodic Benefit Cosls

Stions we use 1o estimate our

it rates in the U.S. and Canad
, on our plan assets:

pensation incréases for

centages of eligible

o sum distributions;




This table shows the discount rates, expected returns on our plan assels and rates of compensation increases we Used the last

three years to estimate our net periodic benefit costs.

a

¢ Mgt B

zﬁ'

sthmate Oue

3.00%

N/A

4.00%

9:00%

Nonregistered plan ia 57 S 0%
only} -

Rate of compen

tion increase:

aried:

u.s

N/A N/A

0%

sf Tabie: o8t and mort nandatad by Pens

oul of the pribr int

Expected Return on Plan Assets

We estimate the expected long-term retum on assets for our:

« gualified and registered pension plans and
« nonregistered plans,

of returmn for plan assets as of {

term rat
is comprised of:

®

ot investments and
= @ 1.8 percent assumed returmn from derivatives,

a 7.2 percent assumed raturn from direc

ermining our expected return;

uires a high degree of judgment,

r historical fund returns as a haga and
o5 added weight on more recent pe
performance

22

Over the \
investment strategy has achieved a 14.8 percent net
compound annual return rate.

's it has been in place, our U.S. pension trust

Nonregistered plans. Canadiah tax rules require that

30 percent of the assets for nonregistered plans go to a
noninterest-bearing refundable tax account. As a result, the
returm we eam investing the other 50 percent is spread over
100 percent of the assets.

Our expected longterry annual rate of return on the equity
portion of this portfolio — the portion we are allowed to invest
and man - 15 7 percent. We base that expected rate of

return o

« historical
« future retum ex

Our expected overall annual retum on assets that fund our

gistered plans is 3.5 percent.

ts Meld by Our Pension Trusts

rived as of year-end, our total actual
return on assets held by our pension msm was a gain of
approximately $808 million in 2013, These truats fund our
qualified, registered and a portion of our nonregistered pension
plans.
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«a formula considering an eligible employee’s service, the
total contriibutions paid on their behalf plus a benefit based
on the value of an eligible employee’s ount.

: ma:é anplanis-a negotialed cost defined benefit plan.
astabll s,h:rrd o provide retirement intome for
we,ﬁ Gn thelr number of years of senvice inthe
benefit rate that applisd 1o that sewvice.

HEALTH CARE COSTS

S heafth care affect the cos

trament plans.

the multiemployer plan by one
Health Care Cost Trend Rates be used to provide benefits to employees of
hout health care ¢
enafits we provide.
ith care cost trend rat

¢ employer stops contributing to the plan, the

was: mfw;ﬁé}u ol )Z sations of the plan may be borme by the
rernaining participating employers.

s If we choose to stop participating in some of the
multiemployer plans, we may be required m msy those plans
an amount based on the underfunded s 5 of the plan,
referred to as » withdrawal liability.

o §.8 percent ir
» 6.2 pereent in \Cmmw

e shows the assump
annual cost increase for healt %

ns We Use In Estimating

ificant changes that affect the
comparability ¢ ,5-‘{)1 3, 2042 and 2011 contributions. None
af pur cantributions exceeded more than five percent of any
plan’s total contributions during 2013, 2012 or 2014,

A1 percent change in our assumed healfth care cost frend

rates can affect our accurnule anafit obligations.

s iy Health Care Gosls

Efoct of a 1 Percent Chang

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

We sponsor various defined contribution plans for our U5, and
Canadian salaried and hourly eémployees. Our gf}vw{mszu\)ms to
Mans were

1o muitismployer definad bens
ve-bargaining agreemerts that cover
nted employees.

The 1.5, plans are established to provide retirement incor
aligible employees who mest certaln age and service

reguirerments at retirery The benefits are generally based

o

v @ pe mn%wui ons paid inte the plan
on e el

‘c*;




SPECIAL-PURPOSE ENTITIES
From 2002 through 2004, we
timberfands in five separate transact
beneficiary and consolidate the assets and
monetization and buyer-sponsored SPEs |
transactions. We have an equity interest in the
SPEs, but no ownership interest in the buyerapons
disclosures refer 1o assets of buversponsored
. because

sold certain nonstrategic

ions. We are the primary
liabilities of certain
these

rvolved in t

monetizati

sored SPEs.

ollowing
nd Habilities of monetization SPEs. Howeaver
;H s are distinet legal entities

€10 sals

are not available

or obligations.

PEs are not our Habilities

i 2043, we repaid a $162 million note and received

$1.84 million related to one Gf our timber monetization SPEs
undertaken in 2003, Net proceeds were $22 million. In 2012,
we repaid a $97 million note and received $110 million related
to one of our timbey monetization SPEs undertaken in 2002,
Net proceeds were $13 million.

1t of Operations includes:

Our Consolidated Stateme
s {nterest expense on SPE notes of:
- $29 million in 2013,
: 3&3‘”’ mi iu()r‘ n 2012 and
: 1 in 2014,

nitlion in 2013,
4 miltion in 2012 and
in 20474,

o owere invested in
5 million

5 proceeds paid to buyer-sponsored SF
restricted financial mve%tmen‘tf“ with a balance of $615
as of December 31, 2013, and $799 million as of
December 31, 2012, The w »“gl'mad average interest rate was
5.4 percent during 2013 and 3.8 percent during 2012,
Maturities of the financial investments at the end of 2013 were:

« $253 million in 2019 and
« $ mitlion in 2020.

NN

*m;v;mrm notes of our monetization St
s of December 31, 2013, and
1, 2012, The weighted awxm;f
it during 2013 and 4.3 percent in 20
5 at the end of 2013 wer

208 million in 2019 and
n 2020.

ancial investments consist of bank guarantees backed by
bank notes for three of the SPE transactions. Interest earnad
from each financial investmeant is used 1o pay interest accrued
on the carresponding SP Any shortfall between interest
garned and interest accrued reduces our equity in the
monetization SPEs.

were $51.4

miliior

‘s note.

Upon dissolution of the SPEs and payment of all obligations of
the entities, we would receive any net equity remaining in the
monetization SPEs and would be reguired to report deferred tax
g‘af s on our income tax return. In the event that proceeds from
i yre insufficient to settie all of the
e are not obligated to cont
Es. As of December 31, 20
5 was approximately 3105 m
lity was estimated o be approximately

VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

i the ordinary cou >f business, our Real Estate segment
nters into lot option purchase agreements in order to procure
am and residential lots for development and the construction
of homes in the future. The use of such lot option agreements
generally allows us to reduce the risks associated with direct
land ownership and development, and reduces our Capit(ﬂ fmci
financial commitments. Pursuant to these lot option purche
ag‘r‘{ém‘mxtﬁs, we generally provide a deposit to t‘a@ seller as
on for the right to purchase lots at dif times in
ually at predetermined prices.

idetra

e, us

antity holding the lots under option i a VIE, our de

sle interest in that entity. If we are

nris rsz:-“y bé’?éf‘ﬂ%a”’ of the VIE, we

al statemnents and re

al estate in process of

Laﬁf:i being protessed for

erm debt {fsonmcuqz%e 1o the

te interest entities.” Creditors of the

with which we have option agreements have no

recourse against us. The maximum exposure 1o loss under our

lot option agreements ig limited to nonrefundable option

deposits-and any capitalized pre-acquisition costs. In sorme
cases, we have also contracted to complete development work

al a fixed cost on behalf of the land owner and budget

shortfalls and savings will be borne by us.

ywnpany) held by variab

In determining whether we are the primary benefic
> gonsider our abi Em/ fc, control activities of the V

nited o the ability to:

fi;\z,z'i; rot fim

« direct entitlement of land,

at and scope of land develo
pment activities,

cisions for the ViE and
Hand into the VIE or dispose of

« determine the by pment work

tand in the

ies of the VIE, we
Hion 1o absorb losses

I we conclude that we control such activiti
also consider whether we have an obligat
of or a right to receive benefits from {

he VIE.
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5 of the end of both 207 nd "% 2, we hadd mpt:orm 0
'pl,‘arc.»fw,rsw. 200 residential
prase we sondiuded we were't
wdof bath 2043 and 2042, <
dts to VIES and capitalized pre
at were not

aption from Viks th
st

NOTE 12: REAL ESTATE IN PROCESS OF
DEVELOPMENT AND FOR SALE

Yalue of Our Real Estate in Proo

Cormmercial acreage, acr
and wther

5605

HOW WE ACCOUNT FOR QUR REAL ESTATE IN PROCESS OF

DEVELOPWENT AND FOR SALE

Cost U

0

Cihisr
¥

, Tetat

NOTE 14: LINES OF CREDIT
This note provides details about our:

CREDIT

OUR LINES OF

Z012, we entered into a new $1 billion 5
volving credit facility that {«:xr:;iz‘f
replaces a $1 billion révoly

sire June 2015, Con&t*ma of o

ng credit

he line

1 of the amour
Estate Company awm “’3
o Neither We&»yemmmwr Company nor WREC
the horrowing of the other.

3 is & guarantor of

Eﬁorrowirwg@ are at LIBOR plus a spread or at other interes!
{ upon between the borrower and the lending
2013, there were no borrowi
cility and Weyerhasuser C um;nm; an
compliance with the credit facility covenar

smber 31

OTHER LETTERS OF CREDIT AND SURETY BONDS

stters of credit and surety bonds we
he end of our last two vears are
ble:

ng balance requirements for our letters of credit

ber 31, 2013,

rtioh due within one year 8

7 debt ino

T4

\’l 3

a5 Weyer| %mn,us@r {,Gn pany debt, ;,_y types
last two years and Includes

dabt, which includ
and interest rates at the end of our
the current portion,




and Interest Rates {Includes Current

Long-Term Debt by Tyy
Fortion)

ros due 2017 281
Hures dus 2048 62

due 2019

s loan credit fasility

s 2024

H.E0% debentures due 2 300

| 7.95% debentures due 2 136
7.70% debentures due 2026 150 1

62

10C

300

7.375% debentures dus 2032

8y

56

----- 10%

4

{ 4,296
Less unamortized discourts (&)
Total :
Portio & G § 408

. in ?u’i3 we issued :,»
5 dL%fEE September 15,
ting the discount, underwriting fees and issuance
2 m@ million. We also entered inlo a )
insecured term loan credit f:§<;:§‘. \

2020 and borrowed $550 million.
spread or at other interest rates
tween the borrower and the lending banks.

by

erior

On October 15, 2013, we repaid Ma $1,248 million carrying
value of the debt that we assumed in the acquisition of
Longview Timber and related fees, expenses and pramiums

using the proceeds from the notes issued and the borrowings
from our term loan m@dfe facility borrowed in 2013, A pretax

charge of $25 million was included in our net inerest expense
in 2013, for early retirement premiums, unamortized debt
issuance costs and other miscellaneous charges in connection
with the early extinguishment of debl. See Note 3 Lo

Timber Purchase for more information.

In addition to the

ongview Timber debt and repayi
we repaid approximately
long-term debt in 2013 and 2011,
in our net interest expense,

d pretax charges in 2014 of
cluded early retirement premiums,
se costs and other miscell
tion with early extinguishment of delbt.

ture,

3 scheduled i’.as ma
and $518 mill

ion of

aneous

Arounts
Years aod the Total Amount Due M&w 2048

of Long-Term Debt Dus Annually for the Next Five

MOTE 416 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
This note provides information about the fair value of our:

s chebt and
» other financial instruments.
FAIR VALUE OF DEBT

The estin
d

wated fair values and carrying values of our |

d of the following:

toor

following val

o market approach — based on quoted market prices we
received for the same types and issues of our dﬁ-bt: or

» income approach — based on the discounted value of the

future cash flows using market yields for the same type and
comparable ssues of debt.

WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY » 2013 AN




EMVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

s based on market dete
or information derived

Our govironmental matiers nclude:

o retire all debt at the

sive Enwironmental Response
sility Aot = commonly Known as the
lar state laws, we:

anup of

# YALUE OF OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

i

that our ather financial instruments, includi h s 11E

tablished r
v;sf\ rfund ¢ :tm and
ves are
in our

Our established reserves, We have es
astimated remediation costs on 'l
other sites for whmh we are r'es;;mr»f‘

;c:omm in

e nature of these ln

it

tarm investmen

sitowangce tor do

NOTE 47: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS, COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES

This note provides detalis about our

matiers and

and other continge

acorual to reflect:

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

« new information on any site concerning implementation of
remediation alternatives,

o Updates on prior cost estima

« costs incurred to remedia

edings arising in the ordinary

arg mm currently a party to any
figy amid EVEe 8

¢ finane

We are pa “‘W ?;<7.: 3

course of s
course of b and new sites and

Estimates, We belleve it mws:m»;b\, ?Q‘:‘:%sbm‘ basad on
ilable information and analysis, U

fied sites may excesad our existi

remediati

f“\ :
ieged to be & ;}aﬁisipﬁm int
y for salaried employees. T

stiremant 5

wse additional costs may be inot
the uppet end of the range of r
The éstimate:

ertain than the estimates on which our
wmv‘\, are based, and

sumptions that are less favorable to us among the
ssible outcomes,

gias, but the for
e We recorded an accrual for
TN our

nuaty 2014, we entered into
sttlernent was not materisl assumed we will not bear the entire cost of reme
avery site,

injunctive ralie
B4 illion that is ¢
c:;/id;‘a*wf F%‘:A alance

in estimating owr current accruals and the possible
additional future costs, we:

jation of

®




« took into account the ability of other potentially responsible
parties to participate
« considered each party’s financial condition and probable
conty site basis.

sution on a per-s
We have not recorded any amounts for ¢ ntial recoveri

from insurance carriers.

fsset Retirement Obligations

21s consisting primarily
tions related 1o forest management lice

ons to close and cap landfills. Some of
taining materials. We have mat cur current
rials. In

se mat

tuations where we ¢ *’?r‘r’!’éim 1
asbastos containing materials might w removed from the

25, we have not recorded an accrual because the fair value
of the obligation cannot be ree .‘s()?w.ii ly estimated. The

“and “Other

s of December 31, 2013 S84

COMINMITMENTS AND OTHER CONTINGENCIES

Our commitments and contingencles include:

« guarantees of debt and performance,
« purchase obligations for goods and services and
o pparating leases.

Guarantees

uaranteed the performance of the buy
lease we sold in 2005, Future pay
es in 2023 — are $17 million.

1 ate segment has guaranteed
performante on ground leases that we sold. |
s — which expire in 2041

the less

Purchase Obligations

Our purchase obligations

- s;peecify ;al! s.;igmﬂcmi. terms and
« cannot be canceled without penalty.

The termes include:

« fixed or minimum guantities to be purchased,

frmum or variable price provisions, &

timing for the transaction.

has:

« other service and supply contracts.

Operating Leases

Our rent expense w

| Rent expense

wluding logging equipment,
ice eguipment,

« offic le space,
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& at or

shares may

Commitments

have varying

of December 31, 2013

prefer

?1(}

s would receive divide
any payments are made {0

COMMON SHARES

e number of common shares we outstanding chan

commitment
It into the

¢ that has
index bul

e exercised,
ok units or performance share uni

s 8 tunits are paid ou

ase program

et oo

are Activity

AND PREFERENCE SHARES

2 time OF

2,199

- Stock cu:;tu:n“n—s (:..».xem';i &l 5,404
As part of our pare 7, we issuad fssued for restricted stock units 523 540
1A.8 milion of our 8,3 artible .u ssued for performar
o Divections st it 41

dends wilt %;e payable on :

our Board «

OUR SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAMS

urchased 1,199,800 shares of cor
the 2008 siock repurchase

,our Board of Din
chase program at
inder wh
iliion of outs
34,824 she

authorized to rapu
sharss, During 201 ! we repure
common stoek for $17 million u
December 31, 2013, we had remainin
L2233 mitlion for futy

w'i.f

:to anti-ditution adjustn
ot o convert each sha
111 CONVAISIon 1
justments, ¢

COMIMG
tirme prior
into common share
ooy

0 that da

N

mon s
¢

Longview f:mhwr F are répure




CUMULATIVE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Changes in amount sluded in

$ ing

our cumulative other comprehensive income (l0ss) by component are;

NOTE 19: SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

ased compensation expense was:

Share-
« $42 million in 2013,
» $37 miltion in 2042 and
» $25 million in 2014,

wides detaiis about:

7 incentive Compeansation Plan {
ount for share-based awar
hare-based awards,
-based compensation and
{ share-based compensatio

» Lax

OUR LONG-TERM INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

Our long-term incentive plans provide for share-bas

that include:

» stock options,
« stock appreciation rights,
s restricted stock,

(3 a3 T ey

4 9 (84 — 48

Tatal other comprehensive income (1o 9 (268) 3} 10 {379}
satance as of December 31, 2012 : 443 SLRAR) (23) @ary 4 {1,558)
iy before {59y 1,423 e 24 {als) $A58

(394) i (27 :
Fese — 17 39 2

ffffff 22 7 14 Eay 21h

- { 3) S e - {78)

ative other 147 4 PR 144

sive incoms gioss;’s 23 2 872

mber 31, 2013 SRS &6 S1ERE)

| awards

« restricted stock units
« performance shares amﬁ
« performance share units.

At our Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on Apri
5 approved the 2013 Piaﬁ‘ Uporn ag
: 2013 Plan, no further awards have
wted under the company’'s 2004 Long
/OO/’ Plan) or 1998 Long-Term Incentive

8 Plan). bharehe ders approved

tion, approximately 9 million shares
SUANCE u%’sd@,r our 20(’}4 Ptan :

vaita
rel @f Directors 1

a8

Q:’e;evic»usi
113 Plan, subject to sharehold

/ adast@d and approved the
approval.

We may issue future grants of up to 19,802,470 shares under
the 20 y reissue forfeited and
d grants.

expirec

i
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TAX BENEFITS OF SHARE-BASED AWARDS
ax benefit from share-based awards
rations -~ for

For stock options and s

Qur total iIncome
recognized in our Consolidated Statement of O

grant of up to 2 million

» A ir ?ucm partic
iEfy one cal mdar yaar,

atock, restricted s
& share units or other &

n the Con !.’}’?]3
5 on share-ba

dina }S« month pertod,

by

units v

awards, we real
tax benefit as fir
ting cash inflows. We

would increase by &

ed awards were @

TYPES OF SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

orvis i the form

We: » stock a;:zm'm,.mt,ic,vrx ri,cg%“z

arred compens units.

s awards,

ohidated

senice

y the

St Upon 1
on ine cia%te ar

i within 10iyears of the grant

imination or the

nation xfesﬂng terms for &
nd 2011

period ends on the  The vesti

any is terminated. options granted in as follows:

pensation expense from share s vest ratably over 4 veg
»df that s shorter than o vast or continue to v

th, disability or




st 62, but  Activity
Nt occurs be
ding on the

« continue 1o vest u
a portion of the
the one e

ber of months employe

fore The following

on award on its gran

terminations;
a Monte-Carlo simul
optic

v the L

=

{1 As of Decemb A, 2005, & wWe tiors thal
bl el the requisite senvice 2 Erant tanms,

RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS

fe Assumptions Used in
anted Y

smploved

: iy,

continue to v
a portion of the
the one yes
number of my

» oontinue v

o

52, but

leagt €

=

2.94%:

Wt ocours before
ng on the

oid Ve {in years)

Fiskfree rate

npensati

stognized over the vestir

T expen

wloyment, we record the share

 compe
that is less than the ¢

)

pel
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Activity Al the end of the two-y

ar performant iod and over a
stock unit activity for farther two-year vesting period, performance share units would
shares of our stock. Performant 8 units

arnad vest as

Thae folowing
034

2

cor
tm /
W(;e«at‘ewzl umtss wzii w f’{)rw

rue dividends that are paid
el stock units

=

Iy retirement

orior m age <F .',.

i

Our Aocounting

s o market condition,

ia reflected inthe wam date

A conta

i %mme Carlo s

‘Cur»veaf vesting

. ice period has been achieved.
ent earmed through

- over a four Welghted Average Assumptio

of Performance Share Units

£
S




Activity The vesting conditions and exceptions are the same as for
The following table shows our performance share unit activity 10vear stock options. Details are in the Stock Options section
for 2013, earlier in this note.

uation model to estim
right on s grant date
: ing date that the right is outs
ck appreciation rights are liability-classified awards and the

fair value i ery veporting date.

Welghted Average Assumption
Stock Appreciation Rights at

(1) As of December 31
units that had met the
i grant terms,

ash flow target,
to 150

5, the company excee

titial number of shares ed equ

percent of iexe‘g{ez

For 2012 grants, the company exceeded the
resulting in an initial number of shares earned
percent of target, Because the company's two-
the B0 and 75% percentile, the
e shares granted increased 17

, the company exceeded the
nber of shares ned e

3 TWO A

5t percer Tf!ln w initial humber m
shares grar iem increased by 20 percent.

As performance share units , @ portion of the shares
awarded s withheld to cover participant taxes. As a resull, the
number of stock units vested and the number of common
ssued will differ.

STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS

> Plan, we grant cash-seltle
part of certain compensation awe

The Details

Stock appr

iation rights are similar to stock opt

ofit when the market price of our stock is higher
tate than it was on the date the stock
rights were granted. The differences are that the

L

amployee:

« receives the henefit as ¢ h aw
« does not purchase the underlying

JEVERMAEUSER COMPANY »




UNRECOGNIZED SHY ¥ COMPENSATION

As ot |

120
non

The Detalls

)

NOTE 20: CHARGES FOR RESTRUCTURING, CLOSURES
AND ASSET IMPAIRMENTS

{in O

wr Hestructuring, Closure and As
.

o
San

clote

sy Chobue

y stock-equivalent units

to reneie 1
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NOTE 24: SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudited)
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EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Al financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is included in the
consolidated financial statements, or the notes thereto, in Financial Statements and Supplementaty Data above.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized February 18, 2014.

WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY

/s/ DovLe R. SIMONS

Doyle R. Simons
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant in the capacities indicated February 18, 2014.

/s/ DovLE R. SIMONS

/s/  WayNE W. MURDY

Doyle R. Simons
Principal Executive Officer
and Director

/s/ PATRICIA M. BEDIENT

Wayne W. Murdy
Director

/s/ NicoLE W. PIASECKI

Patricia M. Bedient
Principal Financial Officer

/S/  JEANNE M. HILLMAN

Nicole W. Piasecki
Director

Jeanne M. Hiliman
Principal Accounting Officer

/s/ Desra A. CAFARO

Richard H. Sinkfield
Director

/s/ D. MICHAEL STEUERT

Debra A. Cafaro
Director

/S/ MARK A. EMMERT

D. Michael Steuert
Director

/s/  Kim WILLIAMS

Mark A. Emmert
Director

/s/ JOHN |. KIECKHEFER

Kim Williams
Director

/S/ CHARLES R. WILLIAMSON

John 1. Kieckhefer
Director

Charles R. Williamson
Chairman of the Board and Director
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CERTIFICATIONS
EXHIBIT 31

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)
Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

I, Doyle R. Simons, certify that:

1. I'have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Weyerhaeuser Company.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report.

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report.

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which that are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 18, 2014

/s/ DovLE R. SIMONS

Doyle R. Simons
President and Chief Executive Officer
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I, Patricia M. Bedient, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Weyerhaeuser Company.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report.

3. Based on my knowiedge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report.

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other centifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which that are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 18, 2014

/S/ PATRICIA M. BEDIENT

Patricia M. Bedient
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b)
Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and
Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code

Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b} under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States
Code, each of the undersigned officers of Weyerhaeuser Company, a Washington corporation (the “Company”), hereby certifies
that:

The Company’s Annua! Report on Form 10-K dated February 18, 2014 (the “Form 10-K") fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ DovLE R. SIMONS

Doyle R. Simons
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: February 18, 2014

/s/ PaTRicIA M. BEDIENT
Patricia M. Bedient

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Dated: February 18, 2014

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and
Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code and is not being filed as part of the Form 10-K or as a separate
disclosure document.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
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WEYERHAEUSER OFFICERS
SCOTT DAHLQUIST

Vice President, Weyerhaeuser Real Estate
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ABOUT WEYERHAEUSER
Weyerhaeuser Company began
operations in 1900 and is one of
the world's largest private owners of
timberlands. We also manufacture
wood and cellulose fibers products.
and we develop real estate, primarily
as a builder of single-family homes.
We employ approximately 13,700 peop-e
who serve customers worldwide. We
are listed on the Dow Jones World
Sustainability Index. Our company is
a real estate investment trust.

Corporate mailing address
and telephone
Weyerhaeuser Compary

PO Box 9777

Federal Way. Washington
98063-9777
253.924.2345

Weyerhaeuser online
WWW.WY.com

Annual meeting

April 10. 2014

George Hunt Waiker
Weyerhaeuser Building
Federal Way, Washington

Proxy material will be mailed on or about
March 7, 2014. to each holder of record
of voting shares.

Stock exchanges and symbols
Weyerhaeuser Company common stock
is listed on the New York Stock Exchange
and the Chicago Stock Exchange. Our
NYSE symbol is WY.

Printed with
inks containing
soy and/or

| vegetable oils

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
Computershare

211 Quality Circle, Suite 210

College Station. TX 77845

Computershare. our transfer agent,
maintains the records for our registered
shareholders and can help you with a
variety of shareholder-related services
at no charge. including:

* change of name or address,

¢ consolidation of accounts,

* duplicate mailings,

» dividend reinvestment and direct stock
purchase plan enrollment,

* lost stock certificates.,

« transfer of stock to another person, and

¢ additional administrative services.

Access your investor statements online
24 hours a day. seven days @ week at
www.computershare.comy/investor.

To find cut more ahout the services

and programs available to you, please
contact Computershare directly to access
your account by internet. telephone or

mail —whichever is mast convenient for you.

Contact us by telephone

Shareholders in the United States
800.561.4405

800.231.5469 TDD for hearing-impaired

Foreign shareholders
201.680.6578
201.680.6610 TDD for hearing-impaired

Contact us online
www.computershare.com/investor

Contact us by mail
Weyerhaeuser Company

c¢/o0 Computershare

PO Box 30170

College Station, TX 77842-3170

SUSTAINABLE
FORESTRY
INITIATIVE

Certified Sourcing

www.sfiprogram.org

SFI-01042
~

WEYERHAEUSER CONTACT INFORMATION
Investor Relations contact

Kathryn F. McAuley

Vice President, Investor Relations
253.924.2058

Shareholder Services contact
Jacqueline W. Hawn

Assistant Corporate Secretary and
Manager. Shareholder Services
253.924.5631
Corporatesecretary@weyerhaeuser.com

Ordering company reports

To order a free copy of our 2013 Annual
Report and Form 10-K and other company
publications. visit: www.wy.com/
Company/CorporateAffairs/Contact,
OrderAPublication

Production notes

This report is printed on 80 Ib. Finch
Opaque cover. and 50 Ib. Finch Opaque
text. The entire report can be recycled in
most high-grade office paper recycling
programs. Thank you for recycling.



FOR MORE INFORMATION, PLEASE VISIT:
http://investor.weyerhaeuser.com
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